Goddard Unified Enterprise Services and Technology (GUEST) Draft Request for Proposal (RFP) Questions and Comments
With Government Responses

Goddard Unified Enterprise Services and Technology (GUEST) Draft Request for Proposal (RFP) Questions and Comments
With Government Responses


In the event of any inconsistency between data provided in this document and the final Request For Proposal (RFP), the language in the final RFP including any amendments, will govern.
1. QUESTION:  Section B.1 Deliverable Requirements indicates the Organizational Conflicts of Interest (OCI) Avoidance Plan is due “30 days after contract effective date.” Also, the Information Technology Security Plan is due “30 days after contract award.” Would you please clarify:


a. Are these plans intended to be due on the same date?


b. How does “contract award/effective date” align with the 30-day Phase-In period? That is, are the plans due coincident with the end of the Phase-In or are they due 30 days after Phase-In ends?

RESPONSE: 

a. The Organizational Conflicts of Interest (OCI) Avoidance Plan and Information Technology Security Plan are due 30 days after the contract effective date.

b. The plans are due 30 days after the contract effective date. Phase-in will occur 30 days before the contract effective date.
2. QUESTION: Section B-1, Several of the deliverables are stated as “working days,” while others simply state “days.”  Please specify deliverables as either “working days” or “calendar days.”

RESPONSE: The final RFP will be amended to clarify that the intent is calendar days for Section B.1 – Deliverables.

3. QUESTION: Section G.1 Progress Payments states, “The Government will make progress payments to the Contractor when requested as work progresses, but not more frequently than monthly, in amounts no greater than 85 percent of each individual task order issued…” If the government issues a one-year task, is it expected that the contractor will have to carry 15% of the cost for the task until the task is completed given the progress payment limit of 85%?  For example, in a likely scenario where there might be six open tasks, each with a 12-month period of performance and each with a target price of $5M, the contractor would be expected to float as much as $4.5M by the end of the year. Is this the intent of this requirement?

RESPONSE:  Clause G.1 “Progress Payments” has been revised to allow small business concerns to request progress payments up to 95% of the target cost for each individual negotiated task order. The successful contractor will have to cover the cost of 5% of the task until completion.
4.  QUESTION:  

a. What is the relationship [between GUEST and ODIN?]

b. What are the operational interfaces between GUEST and ODIN with regards desktop O&M?

RESPONSE:
a. ODIN is our primary desktop provider.  The GUEST contractor is expected to partner with other Information Technology Communications Directorate (ITCD)/GSFC service providers.

b. Offerors are to propose the appropriate interfaces to ensure the objective of the SOO’s and the ODIN Desktop Services are accomplished.  The Government expects the successful Offeror to establish the necessary working relationships to ensure IT services are provided in an effective and efficient manner.
5. QUESTION: We are confused about the Government's intent regarding the Mission Suitability response with respect to the contents of the PWS and the Technical Proposal. Typically, a PWS specifies the “what” (i.e., the contract technical requirements, SLAs, and metrics) while a Technical Approach section would state “how” a contractor proposes to satisfy the requirements in the PWS (i.e., the contractor's approach including techniques, procedures, and innovations that satisfy the PWS requirements).  However, in several places in Section L.13.3, the draft RFP specifies that the PWS include approach, for example, "...The PWS shall also describe the Offeror's techniques and procedures required to meet the performance objectives [of] the SOO, including the Offeror's approach..." On the other hand, Section M.4 seems consistent with a traditional view of the PWS since it specifies in the first paragraph that the PWS identifies the services to be delivered (i.e., "what") while the Technical Proposal must demonstrate how successful implementation of the Government's performance objectives is achieved (i.e., 'how"). Section M also seems more consistent with the specification that the PWS will become part of the contract (as Attachment A) than section L, since approach is not generally included as part of a contract specification.


a. Does the Government intend that the PWS address only the "what" of contract performance while the Technical Proposal addresses the "how"; that is, elements of our proposed approach? If not, can you please clarify the respective contents of these two proposal sections?


b. More generally, is there an order of precedence when Section M and Section L appear to be in conflict?

RESPONSE: 

a. The RFP will be amended to distinguish between the information required to address the Performance Work Statement and the information required to respond to the Technical Approach. 
b. There is no order of precedence between Sections L & M.  Section L provides instructions to Offerors and Section M describes the evaluation factors.
6. QUESTION: How do we pre-qualify subcontractor teaming partners who are important to elements of the SOO/PWS but would likely not be relevant (i.e., participate at a level below 5% of the total solution) in our proposed solution to any of the RTOs? 
RESPONSE: The Government does not have a requirement for Offerors to pre-qualify any of the proposed subcontractors.

7. QUESTION: Section B.4 establishes the parameters for the FPI contract.  Why is the penalty for an overrun (we pay 40% of everything over the target) significantly greater (actually twice as much) than the incentive to underrun (we receive only 20% of the savings)? Shouldn’t the partnership be more equitable? For example, in a pure FFP environment, the contractor is 100% responsible for an overrun but also realizes the entire benefit of any cost underrun.  In a support services environment it is easy to see how metrics/SLAs tie directly to performance. However, the incentive and penalty factors seem to exclusively address cost overrun & underrun, not necessarily performance or quality of service provided. Is this intentional?

RESPONSE: The Government has determined that the share ratios, set forth in the draft RFP, are appropriate to incentivize cost control under the contract.  In addition to the price incentive, there is a performance incentive under each task order.  The total incentive pool will be allocated at 50% for the Price Incentive and 50% for the Performance Incentive.

8.  QUESTION:  Section G-11, LIST OF GOVERNMENT PROPERTY FURNISHED, and Section L.18, LIST OF AVAILABLE GOVERNMENT PROPERTY.  Only IAGP (primarily servers) is identified as available Government Property. Please identify any additional Government Property that may be utilized by the contractor, either in these tables or as an attachment. This would greatly assist the contractor in scoping their property management responsibilities and determining the need to purchase PCs, printers, etc.

RESPONSE: Other than the property set forth in the Attachment H, no additional Government Property will be provided to the Contractor.

9. QUESTION: Section M.4- “evaluation will assess the realism of the proposed schedule and the likelihood for successful performance at the end of the 30-day phase-in period.”  However, SOO Objective 10 Initial Transition Objective states that “During the initial 30-day transition period, the GUEST Contractor is fully accountable and responsible for successful performance of all objectives and requirements on the contract.”  We would suggest the SOO objective be re-worded to reflect that the contractor is not “fully responsible” for all contract objectives and requirements until the end of the 30-day transition period.

RESPONSE: The Final RFP Statement of Objectives (SOO) Objective 10 will be revised to state that the contractor is not ‘fully responsible' for all contract objectives and requirements until the end of the 30-day phase in period.

10. QUESTION: SOO Objective 6.1.2, Training and Outreach. Please identify the number and type of expected training sessions to be provided, and number of expected trainees. Additionally, is a training facility or training room available for conduct of training?

RESPONSE: The Offerors are responsible for determining the number and types of training sessions to be provided, as well as the number of expected trainees.  For proposing on this effort, Offerors shall assume all training will be performed on-site at GSFC.  

11. QUESTION: RTO 3, Data Center Operations. Does the Government require 24x7x365 staffing at the data center?

RESPONSE:  The government requires data center operations services on a 24x7x365 basis.  Offerors are required to propose how they will meet these requirements.

12.  QUESTION: Are there IT best practices/credentials (e.g. ISO 9000, ITIL, PMP certifications, CMMI) that carry more importance because of any particulars specific to the GUEST contract?

RESPONSE:  There is no order of importance of Information Technology (IT) best practices/credentials.

13. QUESTION: Is there an emphasis/preference for commercial outsourcing as part of a Service Delivery Model for GSFC?

RESPONSE: GSFC is open to the full range of service delivery models.

14. QUESTION: Will GSFC need Defense classified security clearances at the start of the contract?  Number or percentage of employees at start date? After transition?

RESPONSE:  The Government will identify the necessary security clearances in the final RFP. At the start of the contract, security clearance at the secret level is required for intrusion incident analysis and investigation (ref: SOO 7.4).  Clearance is not required for tier 1 intrusion detection application operation.  Clearance is not required for the remaining elements of the Security Services Program objectives.  The successful Offeror is required propose the number of employees as part of their task plan in response to a Government issued task order in support of SOO 7.4. See contract clause H.9. (C) (1).
15. QUESTION: Size and Scope - Will our responses to the representative task orders be judged based on their approximation to the actual tasks?  If so, is there more information to help with size and scope, e.g. user base? Other data to help determine scope?, Number of other contracts with which we will need to coordinate services? 

RESPONSE:   The Offerors’ responses to the Representative Task Orders will be evaluated, in accordance with the RFP, based on the specific RTO’s, not as they correlate to a task issued post award.  The RTOs are hypothetical.  Responses to the RTO’s should be based on the information set forth in the RFP, including the GUEST Reference Library.  The GUEST Reference Library provides information that will help Offerors determine the scope of the effort.  Offerors should propose other contract interfaces as part of their proposal.
16. QUESTION: It would be very helpful to hear a discussion of the process for due diligence.

RESPONSE: The Government decided that this process would be covered by information provided in the GUEST Reference Library and the information presented at the Pre-Solicitation Conference held on June 23, 2008. 

17. QUESTION: Is target price an overall price or related to individual task orders, including any that may be added to the contract.

RESPONSE: The Target Price (Target Cost plus Target Profit) is negotiated for each individual task order, in accordance with the rates proposed by the Offeror and set forth in Attachment C of the RFP. 
 18.  QUESTION: From the Library, it appears that the 3 help desks are for specific organizations or functions.  Will they take the place of, or coordinate with ODIN?

RESPONSE:  The help desk coordinates with ODIN.

19. QUESTION:  RTO 1 – Tier 1? -Is this specific to a group of individuals or functions?

RESPONSE:  The technical presentation (6/23/2008) on the Enterprise Service Center/Call Center addresses Tier 1 functions.
20. QUESTION: If for specific functions/applications, what is the customer base?  

RESPONSE: The customer base is Center-wide. The functions covered include enterprise back office support, data center services, applications development, and IT security services for the Goddard Space Flight Center.
21. QUESTION: How were the metrics in RTO 1 determined for the call center?  What is the number of customers to whom we will provide services? 

RESPONSE: Metrics were derived from industry best practices (e.g., Forrester/Gartner).  The customer base is Center-wide, including approximately 3000 Civil Servants and 5000 contractors.

22. QUESTION: RTO 2- Does the 11,500 hosts represent Center-wide support, including on- and near-site for Patchlink services only? Will this task provide all Center-wide Security services for the 11,500 hosts?

RESPONSE: For this RTO, support is for hosts accessible to the Office Automation Information Technology (OAIT) LAN, and it is for Patch Management only.
23. QUESTION:  Task Order 3 – We have the same questions and concerns about size and scope of services to be provided

RESPONSE: The customer base is Center-wide. The functions covered include enterprise back office support, data center services, applications development, and IT security services for the Goddard Space Flight Center.
24. QUESTION:  Task Order 4 – We have the same questions and concerns about size and scope of services to be provided. 

RESPONSE: The size and scope of this RTO is Center-wide. The customer base is Center-wide. The functions covered include enterprise back office support, data center services, applications development, and IT security services for the Goddard Space Flight Center. 
25. QUESTION:  How does this procurement fit into the overall agency/center Desktop Management Plan?  GTeCs?

RESPONSE:  GUEST aligns with current Center and Agency Desktop Management solutions.  The term GTeCS is a concept recommendation from the GSFC Desktop Management, which must align with Center and Agency Desktop Management directions.

26.  QUESTION:  With respect to the Statement of Objectives – Is there a specific list of services to be consolidated as part of this procurement?  Center-wide?

RESPONSE: The GUEST contract will consolidate GSFC IT Infrastructure services and support.  The procurement is a follow-on effort to some of the requirements currently being performed under three separate contract vehicles NAS5-02038 with INDUS Corporation, Contract NNG07DA01C with Beacon Associates, Inc, and Contract NNG07DA57D:Computer Sciences Corporation.
27.  QUESTION:  Will GSFC continue to identify and consolidate other procurements into the GUEST contract during its lifetime?

RESPONSE:  Any appropriate IT infrastructure service that is within scope may be sourced through GUEST during its lifetime.
28.  QUESTION:  re: Attachment J – Does this refer to conflicts between customers, e.g., COTR and end user?  Or to conflicts with other companies on site?

RESPONSE: The Organization Conflicts of Interest Avoidance Plan is applicable to situations where conflicts exist between contractors.  It does not apply to conflicts between customers.
29.  QUESTION:  Please provide an estimate of the number of task orders we might expect on this contract and any information that might help with requirements that are unique or specific to GSFC.

RESPONSE: The Government currently estimates that there will be approximately ten task orders issued at the start of the contract’s ordering period.  However, this number may vary as requirements are developed and as the Center’s IT Plan continues to evolve. 


30.  QUESTION:  Please share the Center philosophy regarding the Surveillance Plan.    We feel it is important for the contractor to be involved in the development of the surveillance plan.  Would you comment on the Contractor role in its development?

How should the contractor, or does the government have a preference, for how the contractor charge Program Management functions, such as business and finance, safety & health, quality etc. to the individual task orders?
RESPONSE: The current Surveillance Plan set forth in the RFP is a “draft” document.  After selection of the successful Offeror, the Surveillance Plan will be adjusted by the Government if needed, based on the successful Offeror’s approach..  Offerors shall propose their Program Management costs consistent with their approved accounting system.  The Government will not issue an individual task order solely to cover Program Management costs.
31.  QUESTION:  RTO #1 provides metrics for responding to end user phone calls.   What metrics will be used to measure end user requests submitted via the Remedy web interface or email?

RESPONSE: Specific metrics will be added to the final RFP that address web and email user requests under RTO#1 Task requirements.
32. QUESTION:  RTO #1 requires the contractor to “…establish and maintain a Remedy Help Desk …”  Can GUEST end users be supported by an existing Remedy-based  Shared Service Center that currently supports other federal and commercial customers, or is the contractor required to establish a separate Tier 1 Service Call Center supporting only the GUEST contract?

RESPONSE: Offerors can  propose a technical approach that meets the objectives whether it is an existing Remedy-based Shared Service Center currently supporting other federal and commercial customers or the GUEST contract solely.
33.  QUESTION:  Will GSFC or the GUEST prime contractor own the Remedy licenses, and other hardware and software, installed in the contractor’s GUEST Tier 1 Service Call Center at the end of the GUEST contract?  

RESPONSE:  For this RTO, the contractor will own the Remedy licenses.  The RTO will be modified to reflect this.
34.  QUESTION:  The Period of Performance is 10/1/2008 – 9/30/2010 for RTO #1.   What is the expected GUEST contract award date to support a 10/01/2008 go live date for the Enterprise Service Call Center? Will RTO #1 be awarded at the same time as the initial contract award?

RESPONSE:  The RTOs are hypothetical and representative.  The Offerors need to propose based on the RTO’s stated Period of Performance, which has been revised in the final RFP.  The actual contract start date may vary from the dates set forth in the RTO’s.
35.  QUESTION:  Is the contractor, or the government, responsible for building and maintaining the custom code needed to integrate the newScale Service Catalog with Remedy Service Desk?

RESPONSE: The contractor is responsible for the code needed for integration.

36. QUESTION: Is the contractor required to locate the Enterprise Service Call Center in the United States?  Can calls to the Enterprise Service Call Center be routed to agents in the contractor’s off-shore call centers on weekends and federal government holidays?

RESPONSE:  The Contractor is required to propose the Enterprise Service Call Center at the Contractor’s facility and use of proposed off-site locations must be in accordance with Clause H.6 (18-52.225-70).  
37: QUESTION: RTO #1 refers to the Remedy Help Desk Tickets system.  Please confirm the current product name is “Remedy ITSM Service Desk.”      

RESPONSE: Yes, the product is named Remedy ITSM Service Desk.

38.  QUESTION: RTO #1 refers to the Remedy “Knowledge/Known Error Database”.  Please confirm the current product name is “Remedy Knowledge Management”.    

RESPONSE: Yes, the product is named Remedy Knowledge Management.

39. QUESTION: RTO #1 states “The contractor shall work closely to establish service level agrees with non-ITCD Help Desk (quality 20) to take over Tier 1 responsibilities.”  Should the word “quality” be “quantity”?  If yes, please identify the 20 non-ITCD Help Desks with whom the GUEST contractor is required to establish SLAs.

RESPONSE:  This task requirement has been removed from RTO 1.

40. QUESTION: If the evaluation is based on the RTOs and that is only representative of what the cost of the real task order. What is the range of increase in fee that will be considered to be acceptable? 

RESPONSE: There is no “range” for the proposed Target Profit.  The Incentive Fee Rate proposed in the Attachment C – Direct Labor and Incentive Fee Rate Matrix is the maximum incentive fee that can be proposed on each task order issued under the contract.
41. QUESTION:  If there are the critical factors, including significant cost differences, how will NASA evaluate the pricing structure?

RESPONSE: The proposed pricing will be evaluated in relation to the Offeror’s technical approach for reasonableness and a best value selection will be made based on mission suitability, price and past performance.
42.  QUESTION:  If the Fixed-Price Incentive contract approach is retained, what are the legal, and cost- share implications in the event of cost overruns, or schedule delays caused by outside contractors, not within the control of NASA or the GUEST Contractor, e.g. if the delays are caused by the ODIN, or non-ODIN contractor?

RESPONSE:  Costs growths that may be within the control of NASA or its contractors may be subject to review for potential equitable adjustment to the applicable contract.  Costs that are within the control of the GUEST contractor, its subcontractors or its suppliers or vendor will be considered a normal cost of doing business and not be subject to an equitable adjustment. 
43. QUESTION:  In a Fixed Price Incentive contract approach, are the identified risks and mitigations shared equally between the Govt. and the Contractor, or are these also allocated at the agreed split, in the event of cost overrun, or cost underrun?

RESPONSE: Under the GUEST contract, the costs risks are shared in accordance with the ratio set forth in Clause B. 4 of the RFP.
44.  QUESTION:  Who are the Government’s interface positions: for the contract; for the RTOs?

RESPONSE: The Government’s interface positions for the contract are the Contracting Officer and Contracting Officer’s Technical Representative.  The interfaces for the awarded task orders are the task order initiators or task monitor/managers, which will be identified with each task order.

45.  QUESTION:  Does the technical due diligence include a site visit, or will a site visit be conducted on a separate occasion?

RESPONSE: The Government does not intend to conduct site visits.

46.  QUESTION:  What is the level of ITIL training of the NASA employees and the current incumbent contractors?

RESPONSE:    The Government does not have access to the level of experience or training of incumbent contractors.  When a task is issued during contract performance, the level of training required will be specified for all attendees.
47.  QUESTION: Are the GUEST PM and the Project Management Office staff expected or required to be on-site at GSFC?

RESPONSE:  The Program Manger and/or Program Management Office are not required to be on-site.  The Government is looking for the Offerors to propose the locations of the contractor Program Manager and the contractor staff that meet the objectives set forth in the RFP. 

48.  QUESTION:  Will NASA post copies of all existing SLAs in the Bidders Library?

RESPONSE: No, copies of SLAs are not available.
49.  QUESTION:  L.11.(b) does not specify a page limit for the Management portion of the proposal.  What is the page limitation for the Management Proposal? 

RESPONSE: There are no page limitations by subfactor. The page limitation is on the total Mission Suitability Volume. The page limit encompasses all subfactors within the technical proposal.  Elements of Subfactor C, Management Approach, that are excluded from this page limitation are identified in the RFP. 

50.  QUESTION:  Where is the template located for the RTO’s which was indicated to reside within the GUEST Procurement Library?

RESPONSE: The Offerors task plans for the RTO’s shall be prepared in accordance with Clause B.3 and Price Charts “Exhibits” within the page limitations for Mission Suitability Volume 
51.  QUESTION:  

a. RTO 1-What GFE can be assumed to be available for this TO?

b. Will the Remedy site-wide license be provided as GFE?

c. Who is responsible for any upgrade to existing Remedy capabilities? 

d. Will an alternative to REMEDY be considered? 

e. What are the existing agency and center IT systems which can be integrated? 

f.  Can these be identified by a site visit?

RESPONSE: 

a..The only GFE available to support this RTO is the GFE set forth in Attachment H to the RFP.. 
b &c. The contractor is responsible for acquiring and maintaining (including required upgrades) REMEDY.  The RTO will be modified to reflect this.

d. For this RTO, Remedy is required. 

e. No existing systems have been identified to be integrated. 

f. No site visits are scheduled for this effort.

52.  QUESTION:  RTO 1- With a wide disparity of the possible implementations and prices, how will the merits of any alternatives be evaluated?

RESPONSE: The RTO responses will be evaluated in accordance with Section M of the RFP.  Specifically, each offeror’s approach will be evaluated for its ability to meet the performance objectives set forth in the RFP.  The Government will evaluate whether the proposed approach is credible and consistent with the Offeror’s proposed Performance Work Statement..
53.  QUESTION: Can we assume that the ConOps, IT Security Plan, Risk Management Plan, Customer Satisfactions Metrics, and performance reports of the existing legacy and Center IT systems will be available to the Contractor at the start of the Period of Performance?  Can they be included in the bidder’s library?

RESPONSE: All required security documentation and metrics will be made available to the Contactor at the start of the ordering period.  Information that is sensitive/controlled will not be placed in the GUEST Reference Library. The ConOps, IT Security Plan, Risk Management Plan and associated documents of the Certification & Accreditation Package, Customer Satisfactions Metrics, and performance reports of the existing legacy and Center IT systems will be available to the Contractor at the start of the Period of Performance. Documents that are part of the Certification & Accreditation Package are sensitive and controlled item and will not be placed in the Library.
54.  QUESTION:  Are there any dependencies which exist in the current data, voice communications services for the legacy help desk services, which would prevent a migration of some or all of the government furnished equipment to an off-site location? 

RESPONSE: No, there are no dependencies which exist.

55. QUESTION:  RTO 2 - Does this task order start on the POP date or is it on-going?  If on-going are the deliverables appropriate?  What GFE can be assumed to be available?

Can we assume that the ConOps, System Engineering Management Plan, Requirements Management Plan, IT Security Plan, & Risk Management Plans of the existing Patchlink servers will be available to the Contractor at the start of the Period of Performance?

RESPONSE:. See answer to Question 59.
56.  QUESTION: RTO 3- Does this task order start on the POP date or is it on-going?  If on-going are the deliverables appropriate? What GFE can be assumed to be available?

RESPONSE:  The performance period for the Representative Task Order has a specific start and stop date, which is set forth in the RTO. Any GFE that is available has been set forth in Attachment H of the RFP.  
57.  QUESTION: RTO 3- Is there any planned phase-out for the Data Center Services, e.g. e-mail, mailing lists, legacy email address relay, SMTP, as/av, backup services, directory services, and file exchange, within the Period of Performance of this RTO?  Which Center services may be decommissioned after transition to Agency centralized services? Which standards are referred to in the Virtualization paragraph?

RESPONSE:  There is currently no planned phase-out for Data Center Services. Since decommissioning of services is based upon Agency directives and schedules which are unknown at this time, they should not be considered when responding to RTO 3. Technical standards for virtualization should be aligned with NASA and federal directives.

58.  QUESTION:  RTO 3- Should the paragraph pertaining to Help desk read “shall provide a tier 2 help desk support for data center customers. Both internal to GSFC and external, to be integrated with ITCD help desk support detailed in RTO1 of this solicitation?”
RESPONSE: The paragraph pertaining to Help Desk shall be re-worded “shall provide a tier 1 help desk support for data center customers..”.  RTO 1 provides tier 1 support to RTO 3.
59. QUESTION:  RTO 4- Does this task order start on the POP date or is it on-going?  If on-going are the deliverables appropriate?  What GFE can be assumed to be available?  Can we assume that the ConOps, System Engineering Management Plan, Requirements Management Plan, IT Security Plan, & Risk Management Plans of the existing business information systems applications will be available to the Contractor at the start of the Period of Performance?  Is there any planned phase-out for the existing business information systems applications, within the Period of Performance of this RTO? 

RESPONSE: The performance period for the RTO is as stated on the RTO. .For purposes of proposing on this effort, the task contains a specified start and end date and is not ongoing. The only GFE available to support this RTO is the GFE set forth in Attachment H to the RFP.. All required security documentation and metrics will be made available to the Contactor at the start of the ordering period.  Information that is sensitive/controlled will not be placed in the GUEST Reference Library.  Specifically, the ConOps, IT Security Plan, Risk Management Plan and associated documents of the Certification & Accreditation Package, Customer Satisfactions Metrics, and performance reports of the existing legacy and Center IT systems will be available to the Contractor at the start of the Period of Performance. Documents that are part of the Certification & Accreditation Package are sensitive and controlled item and will not be placed in the Library. The RTO has been modified to include 10 new applications and 5 applications to be decommissioned.

60.  QUESTION:  B. 2 MINIMUM/MAXIMUM AMOUNT OF SUPPLIES OR SERVICES (FIXED PRICE) (GSFC 52.216-92) (JUL 2006)--page 6 - Since this contract will result in a substantial revenue increase for a company that has average revenue for the last three years of less than $23 million, it will have a large impact on the indirect rates of the company.  Please provide an estimated breakdown of the contract labor and ODC’s.  For the purpose of the proposal and establishing rates will the Government provide a revenue planning number for a basis of rate determination?

RESPONSE: The RFP will be revised to include information on the expected costs to be incurred annually under this contract. 

61.  QUESTION: B. 1 DELIVERABLE REQUIREMENTS (GSFC 52.211-90) (OCT 1988)—Page 5-  XE "B. 1DELIVERABLE REQUIREMENTS (GSFC 52.21190) (OCT 1988)
" Since no management task is contemplated and several contract deliverables are required early in the contract, please provide an estimate of task revenue for the first six months which will provide a base for the performance of non-task work.

RESPONSE: See Answer to Question #60.
62.  QUESTION: B. 4FIXED PRICE INCENTIVE (1852.216-83) (OCTOBER 1996)—Page 6-  XE "B. 4FIXED PRICE INCENTIVE (1852.216-83) (OCTOBER 1996)
" This clause only addresses cost performance and would indicate that all incentives are related to cost.  This contradicts section H.13 PERFORMANCE INCENTIVE, on page 51, that states in paragraph 3:  “The total proposed target profit under the individual task order shall be 50 percent for the Price Incentive and 50 percent for the Performance Incentive.”  Please reconcile this apparent inconsistency.
RESPONSE: Clauses B.4 and H.13 do not contradict each other, rather, they are meant to complement each other.. B.4 discloses the Price Incentive share ratio, and H.13 discloses the Performance Incentive terms and conditions. The incentives will be split as follows:  50% for Price Incentive and 50% for Performance Incentive.

63.  QUESTION:  L.14 PRICE VOLUME—p 102, Contract Program Management costs; include and identify, if not included in indirect costs. An allocation of contract program management to indirect cost does not seem to be in compliance with FAR 31.202.  What base shall bidders use for the ‘spreading’ of contract program management activities?

RESPONSE: The Offerors shall propose their Program Management costs consistent with their approved accounting systems.  The Government will not issue an individual task order solely to cover Program Management costs.  Program Management should be proposed as part of the task plan to the Government as either a 1)component of the indirect rates, or 2) cost estimating relationship, or 3) as a direct charge.

64.  QUESTION:  L.14  PRICE VOLUME M. 1  EVALUATION OF COMPENSATION FOR PROFESSIONAL EMPLOYEES (52.222-46) (FEB 1993)  (i) PRODUCTIVE WORK YEAR CALCULATIONS--Page 105 Please provide the average seniority for leave accrual for the current workforce so that the calculation for Exhibit C 7 can be made in accordance with the requirements of M.1.

RESPONSE:  The Government does not have information on the average seniority of incumbent employees.  Exhibit C-7 requires offerors to propose their productive work-year calculations.  

65.  QUESTION:  M.5 PRICE EVALUATION FACTOR—Page 120 “This is a fixed price incentive fee acquisition.A price analysis will be conducted in accordance with FAR 15.305(a)(1).  Price analysis is described at FAR 15.404-1(b).  This analysis is done to ensure that a "fair and reasonable" price is paid by the Government.  However, the analysis is not intended to be protective of the offeror.”  Please present the NASA findings on their determination that the requirements represent a “fair and reasonable” request from an 8(a) small business that is in the interest of the small business also?  What is the basis for determining the contract price for award if not FAR 31.102?

RESPONSE:   During the acquisition planning stage of this procurement, the Government performed market analysis to determine if the effort was appropriate for a small business (8(a) set-aside.  The market research indicated that it was appropriate for a set aside.  If Offerors find a specific component of the RFP to be not fair and reasonable, the Offeror should identify that specific provision to the Government. The Government’s price evaluation will be conducted in accordance with Section M.5 and FAR 15.305(a)(1).
66. QUESTION: G.1   Progress Payments. 52.232-16  (Apr 2003) Alternate I (Mar 2000).-Page 18. “The Government will make progress payments to the Contractor when requested as work progresses, but not more frequently than monthly, in amounts no greater than 85 percent of each individual task order issued, under the following conditions:…”   NFS 1832.501-1 Customary progress payment rates.( The NFS has been modified through Procurement Notice 04-34, dated May 29, 2008.) states the following:
“(a)  The customary progress payment rate for all NASA contracts is 85 percent for large business, 90 percent for small business, 95 percent for small disadvantaged business, and 100 percent for Phase II contracts in the Small Business Innovation Research (SBIR) and Small Business Technology Transfer (STTR) programs. The contracting officer shall insert the applicable percentage in paragraphs (a) and (b) of the clause at FAR 52.232-16.”

Given that (1) the 85%-level would require the long-term carrying of substantial debt and the associated finance charges are not allowable, (2)  the bidders average 3-year revenue is less than $23 million, and (3) the bidders are 8(a) contractors, then the 95% level seems warranted.  The debt required is in addition to the normal 2-month carrying of operations cost through the payment cycle.  The total debt currently required will severely limit the competition and may not be financeable by a business in this 8(a) category. 

Will the Government change the progress payment level to be consistent with NFS 1832.501-1 as updated?

RESPONSE: Yes, the Final RFP has been revised under Clause G.1 Progress Payments the 85 percent progress payment level has been changed to a 95 percent progress payment level. 

67.  QUESTION:  I. 2 INCENTIVE PRICE REVISION--FIRM TARGET (52.216-16) (OCT 1997) Given the FPI nature of this 5-year contract and the current state of the economy, what is the basis for NASA not including an Economic Price Adjustment Clause?

RESPONSE: During acquisition planning, the Government determined that the Economic Price Adjustment contract type is not applicable to the services to be provided under GUEST (see FAR 16.203-1). 

68. QUESTION: Paragraph (f) is not consistent with section G. Please clarify.   
Page 56 (f) Adjusting billing prices. “ (1) Pending execution of the contract modification (see paragraph (e) above), the Contractor shall submit invoices or vouchers in accordance with billing prices as provided in this paragraph.  The billing prices shall not exceed 80 percent of the negotiated target prices shown for each task order.”

RESPONSE: The RFP has been amended to ensure that all information relating to progress payments and billing is consistent throughout the solicitation.  Also, see answer to Question #66.
69.  QUESTION:  L.11 PROPOSAL PREPARATION—GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS 

(b)
PROPOSAL CONTENT AND PAGE LIMITATIONS—Page 88 

The Management approach and its page limit are not included in the table for the Mission Suitability Volume.  Is there a separate allocation for the Management Approach?

RESPONSE: Section L.11 establishes the Proposal Content and Page Limitations for each volume. Page limitations are not limited by subfactor, rather the page limitation is established for the entire Mission Suitability Volume.  The Mission Suitability Volume has a 200 page limitation and elements of this volume that are excluded from the page count are identified in L.11. Again, there is no separate allocation for the Management Approach.

70.  QUESTION:  L.14 PRICE VOLUME (f) SUMMARY OF Indirect Rates—Page 104.  To prepare this data the following are required:

1. 
The anticipated split between Labor and ODC costs

2. 
The number of personnel on the current contracts that are allocated to GUEST.

3. 
The seniority levels of the current workforce—number of people by years of service

4. 
The number of exempt and non-exempt personnel on the current contracts that will be allocated to GUEST.

Will the Government provide this information?

RESPONSE:  The Government is seeking creative approaches to meeting the requirements set forth in the GUEST RFP.  Accordingly, providing information on the current labor force could be misleading, as this information may not be indicative of an optimal approach for meeting the new objectives.  The procurement has been structured to allow maximum flexibility to the offers and allow them to provide a unique approach to the objectives set forth in the RFP.  Offerors should use their IT expertise and the current IT market to determine the appropriate skill mix and rates for accomplishing the work under this contract.  The split between labor and ODC costs should be proposed based on the description of work provided in each RTO.  The Government does not have information on the seniority levels of incumbent personnel available to provide to prospective Offerors.  
71.  QUESTION:  Does the Government plan a single award for GUEST?

RESPONSE:  The Government intends to award a single contract for GUEST services.
72.  QUESTION: L.14 PRICE VOLUME (k)  SOURCE OF PERSONNEL—Page 105
 No information has been provided on the incumbent workforce.  Please provide the following:

1. 
The number and skill mix of the incumbents

2. 
Position descriptions for the incumbent skill mix.

3. 
The seniority distribution of the incumbent workforce

RESPONSE: See Answer to Question #70.
73.  QUESTION:  L.15 Past Performance Volume(a)INFORMATION FROM THE OFFEROR—Page 107- Since the proposers are 8(a) companies and many of these contracts are limited to $3 million, will the Government consider lowering the past performance contract size to $2 million?

RESPONSE: The Government has determined that $3 million is appropriate for this RFP.

74.  QUESTION:  M. 1 EVALUATION OF COMPENSATION FOR PROFESSIONAL EMPLOYEES (52.222-46)—page 113- So that the offeror may meet the intent of this requirement, please provide the following:

1. 
Position Descriptions

2. 
Incumbent direct labor rates, or

3. 
Average direct labor rate for the incumbent workforce

RESPONSE:  See the response to Question 70 above.

75.  QUESTION:  M.5
PRICE EVALUATION FACTOR 4. Source Selection Authority—Page 120- 1.  The limitation of evaluation to the RTO’s seems flawed.   There is not an adequate base to spread the total management cost which is included in the RTO unless that cost for an indeterminate size activity is assumed and spread across the four RTOs.

a.  Please provide the anticipated contract value for each year even if only for evaluation purposes.

b.  Please provide the annual staffing projection for the total contract even if only for evaluation purposes.

RESPONSE:

a. The RFP will be revised to include information on the expected costs to be incurred annually under this contract. .

b..See the response to question 70.

76.  QUESTION:  There is no way to estimate the total contract price unless the Government models the current workforce and multiplies that by the provided loaded position cost, but this is not listed as a presentation to the selection  authority. “A price analysis will be conducted in accordance with FAR 15.305(a)(1).  Price analysis is described at FAR 15.404-1(b) …”   Although cost data is required, please define how the government will use these data in a price analysis and evaluation.

RESPONSE:  The Offerors are not required to propose a contract price for the total effort.  Offerors are required to propose a price for each RTO.  The Government will evaluate proposed prices in accordance with the criteria set forth in Section M.5 Price Evaluation Factor of the RFP.
77. QUESTION:  What will the response time to the Final RFP be?  45 days? 30 days? Or staggered for different proposal elements?

RESPONSE: The proposal response time will be 30 calendar days.

78.  QUESTION: RTO 1- Who is responsible for the supporting infrastructure, e.g., office space, communications including Internet, furniture, office equipment, IT equipment and software, Remedy license, etc.  Given the IDIQ nature, if not GFE it would need to be ODC unless NASA specifies a minimum task cost. Is there a GSFC proximity requirement for the Call Center? Is there an onfsite requirement for support to WFF?  At least two alternative solutions to RTO 1 are possible—commercial call center, or a dedicated and staffed facility.  Are any of them precluded?

RESPONSE: The Government shall provide supporting infrastructure (e.g., office space, communications including Internet, furniture, office equipment, standard desktop IT hardware and software) for on-site functions.  All Tier 1 infrastructure support and non-desktop hardware (servers, tools, test equipment, etc.) and software are the responsibility of the contractor. Remedy ITSM Service Desk and Knowledge Management software are the responsibility of the contractor.  There is no proximity requirement for Tier 1 services.  On-site requirements include the Wallops Flight Facility (WFF) for Tier 2 services only.
79.  QUESTION:  SLA’s –Please provide  the current performance metrics or historical performance data  for the existing systems and services?  

RESPONSE: The Government will include available performance metrics in the GUEST Reference Library.
80.  QUESTION: RTO 1 page 2. Task Requirements, paragraph 3, last full line.  “The contractor shall work closely to establish service level agrees with non-ITCD Help Desk (quality 20) to take over Tier 1 responsibilities.”  Should ‘agrees’ be agreements?  Should ‘quality 20’ be ‘quantity 20’?  

RESPONSE:  This requirement has been removed from RTO 1.

81. QUESTION:  RTO 2 page 8. Deliverable 2, WBS.  Please list the subsystems to be included in the WBS at level 2. Deliverable 6, Documentation, Training and Logistics Plan, in the Performance Standard column, “Provide documentation needed for the operation of the PL,…”  Please define ‘PL.’ in this context.

RESPONSE: Government has not predefined the WBS structure, rather, Offerors shall propose their WBS Structure. The Offeror shall define the subsystems that are required for the RTO.  PL is an acronym for PatchLink. 
82.  QUESTION: RTO 3, page 11, Task Requirement, “…Plan of Operations…”

What are the standard hours of operation?

RESPONSE: GSFC has core business hours of 8am to 5pm Monday through Friday. However, since GSFC has a mobile workforce with flexible work times and locations, our IT services need to be available 24x7.
83.  QUESTION:  Page 13, Help Desk:  “The Offeror shall provide second level help desk support …to be integrated with the ITCD help desk support detailed in RTO 2…”

Should the reference be to RTO 1?

RESPONSE: Yes, the reference will be corrected in the final RFP.

84.  QUESTION:  Page 14, Deliverable 2:  “Transition current operational environment into a virtualized mode (~120 current servers in operation).” This deliverable is not in the POP for the RTO.  Please clarify.

RESPONSE: The deliverable requirement will change to “Within 6 months of task initiation”.

85.  QUESTION:  Exhibit A, RTO 4, page 16, Product or Service 1, Project Management Plan.  This plan should be in place before the POP. Performance Standard seems to be a combination of service and content of the Plan.

RESPONSE: The plan will not be in place before the period of performance. The Project Management Plan is cited as a Deliverable under this RTO. 
86.  QUESTION: Product or Service 2,WBS. Please define the subsystems to be included at Level 2.  Fee-for-service element does not seem to fit in WBS deliverable.  This requirement is of major impact and gets into the ownership of the system.  A separate study or report related to this would seem more appropriate.

RESPONSE: The Offeror shall define the subsystems that are required. The Government has determined that the deliverable is appropriate as set forth in the Draft RFP and in the final RFP. 
87.  QUESTION:  Is travel required in RTO 4?

RESPONSE: No travel is required for RTO 4.

88.  QUESTION:  Product or Service 5 Requirements Management Plan - Please identify any  requirement management tools currently used and available to the GUEST contractor?

RESPONSE: For purposes of this RTO, the contractor requirement management tools are to be proposed by the Offeror.  The Government is not providing any requirement management tools.

89.  QUESTION:  

a. RTO 1- Please list other ITCD contracts that the GUEST contractor will have to interface with to support the call center.  Is 24x5 or 24x7 support required for the Call Center?

b. If the GUEST contractor is assuming Tier 1 responsibility for the Tier 1 activities at 20 other help desks, why are SLAs needed with the other help desks? Or are the 20 other help desks providing support to the GUEST contractor which requires SLAs to quantify expected performance?

c. Can NASA please provide a list of Agency and Center IT systems used on the current GUEST related contracts?
RESPONSE:

a. The Offeror is to define the necessary interfaces to support the call center. Tier 1 services are 24x7x365.  

b. This requirement has been removed from RTO 1.

c. Agency and Center Systems currently supported by ITCD Help Desk Services are in the GUEST Reference Library.

90.  QUESTION:  RTO 2-  Is this support desk service separate from the Enterprise call center or merely another activity supported by the call center? 

RESPONSE:  The support desk services mentioned in RTO 2 are not separate from the Enterprise Call Center described in RTO-1. The Tier 1 services associated with RTO-2 should be integrated into RTO-1.
91.  QUESTION:  RTO 3  Help Desk - The offeror shall provide second level help desk support for data center customers, both internal to GSFC and external, to be integrated with the ITCD help desk support detailed in RTO 2 of this solicitation. The Tier 2 support shall be available 6am to 6pm Monday-Friday. If RTO2 has ended (see POP), how is integration to be accomplished?

RESPONSE: For purposes of responding to this RTO, assume that other “RTOs” are in place to support this RTO.  The Period of Performance (POP) timeframes are representative for evaluation purposes only.

92.  QUESTION:  Within 6 months of contract initiation, complete the migration from current state into a virtualized state. Will NASA please differentiate between contract initiation or task initiation in this case.

RESPONSE: The RTO will be changed to reflect within 6 months of task initiation.

93.  QUESTION:  RTO 4 – 

a. Please provide an estimate of the number of applications to be developed during this task.

b. Please provide a list of Agency systems and GSFC systems and databases these applications might access. 

c. How many FTE’s support this task currently?

RESPONSE: 

a.& b: The Government will provide the number of applications that will be developed and decommissioned during this task. Software applications are developed on a demand driven customer need basis. There are currently over 200 applications in the inventory that need sustaining engineering support. See the Industry Day Presentation in GUEST Reference Library for more information.
c. See Answer to Question #70.
94.  QUESTION: Are RTO’s 2,3,4 ongoing tasks for planning and costing purposes?

RESPONSE: The functions supported through RTO’s 2, 3, and 4 may continue throughout the contract ordering period.  However, as the solicitation will result in an IDIQ contract, there is no guarantee that these tasks will run throughout the full duration of the contract.
95.  QUESTION:  Clause B.5 Page 7- Will delivery orders mentioned in this section be defined elsewhere in the RFP? 

RESPONSE: Task orders (delivery orders) are also referenced at Clauses B. 2, B.3, B. 5, B.6, B.7, C.2, F.4 and I.2.

96.  QUESTION:  Is Attachment A to be the Government’s Statement of Objectives (SOO), Exhibit D? 

RESPONSE: Attachment A is not the Government’s Statement of Objectives.  The proposed Performance Work Statement (proposed by each Offeror) will be incorporated as Attachment A.

97.  QUESTION:  L.11 (a) (2)  Is the price proposal marking RFP NNG08230770R correct? 

RESPONSE: Yes, the Final Request for Proposal Number will be NNG08230770R.  The Draft Request for Proposal Number is NNG08230770J.
98.  QUESTION:  L.11 (b) (1) Is the page limitation for (b) Basis of Estimates to be 2 pages per RTO rather than per WBS? 

RESPONSE: The page limitation for the Basis of Estimates is 2 pages per RTO and shall be stated in the Final RFP.

99.  QUESTION: In RTO 1, has there been a business case analysis conducted to define the requirements for the Enterprise Service Call Center? If so, can the results from this be shared with the Offerors?

RESPONSE:  There has not been a business case analysis conducted to define the requirements for the Enterprise Service Call Center.

100. QUESTION: There is some duplication in the Statement of Objectives. 

6.2.    Systems Analysis Support

Provide comprehensive analytical support to determine new requirements 

for existing enterprise systems, capabilities, and business processes in 

accordance with Agency and GSFC IT Strategic Direction.

6.8.3 Systems Analysis Services

Provide comprehensive analytical support to determine requirements for 

new and existing systems, capabilities and business processes.

Please clarify the differences in the requirement 6.3 and 6.8.3.

RESPONSE: Yes, these statements of objectives are similar and will be clarified in the final RFP.

101. QUESTION:  Section L 13.3 Subfactor C: Management Approach: At the end of the   first paragraph it says "The Offeror shall provide their proposed Work Breakdown structure (WBS) and WBS Dictionary".  Why is this requirement in the Management Approach? It seems more suited for the Subfactor A - PWS/Technical Approach - specifically, it is better suited to be part of the PWS response to the SOO.

RESPONSE:  The Government has revised the information that must be set forth in Subfactor C “Management Approach” of the Final RFP. 
102.  QUESTION:  What is the significance of the directory structure in the GUEST Procurement Library? Does this signify an implied WBS structure to support the PWS, or is the contractor free to provide its own WBS structure?

RESPONSE: The structure in the library was defined to capture all relevant functional areas.  It doesn’t imply a WBS structure, and the Offerors are expected to provide their own.

103.  QUESTION:  Section L- Since the technical volume is more than 200 pages, we suggest that the deliverable documents for all volumes be in PDF or Excel formats.  This will permit the use of desktop publishing tools which will provide a better product and is still searchable.

RESPONSE:  The Offeror has the flexibility to submit volumes in pdf form; submissions shall remain within the page and font limitations for the sections of each volume specified in section L of the RFP. Two electronic copies of the Offeror’s proposal, one designated as “back-up,” shall be submitted (in addition to the hardcopies specified above) in Microsoft Word and Excel (Windows XP) or Portable Document Format (version 8.0 or greater), with the exception of the Price Volume.

104.  QUESTION:  B.5 (c) With GSFC’s electronic ordering system, all references to delivery or task orders being issued by mail should be deleted. (The ordering clause 52.216-18 appears obsolete.)  

RESPONSE: The clause shall remain as a risk mitigation (in the event the system is not operational upon immediate execution for an individual task order award).
105. QUESTION:  B.6 (b) (2) Is $229,000,000 the correct potential top value of the contract over the five year ordering period? Since it provides an incentive for companies to compete, presenting an erroneously high value would be misleading. 

RESPONSE: See Answer to Question #60.  

106. QUESTION: B.8 (c) (1) This clause indicating that funding is are assured only for a limited time period is troublesome from a recruiting standpoint if the period to be stated in the final RFP doesn’t cover  a minimum of a two year period. 

RESPONSE: Appropriation of funds is made available per fiscal year.  Funds obligated under each task order shall establish an allotment date for that amount.  If funds allotted are considered by the Contractor to be inadequate to cover the work to be performed until that date, or an agreed date substituted for it, the Contractor shall notify the Contracting Officer. 

107. QUESTION: C.2 (d) (5) This clause is not consistent with Clause B.4.

RESPONSE: Article C.2(d)(5) and Clause B.4 are complimentary provisions.
108. QUESTION: E.1 Suggest GSFC consider the applicability of the second paragraph. 

RESPONSE: The Government has examined the second paragraph of Clause E.1 and concluded that it is applicable to this requirement.
109. QUESTION: E.2 (c) testing by the Government before the contractor conducts the testing is most unusual. Judging whether it will not unduly delay and add cost to a fixed price contract is controversial. Recommend dropping this clause. 

RESPONSE: This is a clause that is required by the FAR to be included in this solicitation.
110. QUESTION: E.2 (e) This clause is inconsistent with the fixed price nature of this contract. Once accepted by the Government, the contractor should have no further unfunded liability.  Recommend dropping this clause.
RESPONSE: See Answer to question number 109.
111. QUESTION: F.2  This old Stop Work Order (August 89) is inconsistent with this fixed price task order contract. 

RESPONSE: The Government has determined that is in its best interest to include this clause in this solicitation.  FAR guidance permits use of this clause in fixed priced services contracts.
112. QUESTION: F.3 Since all systems delivered are located at GSFC, the applicability of this clause in the model agreement is questionable.

RESPONSE: The Offerors’ approach may vary, and require alternate delivery destination points.  The Government has concluded it is appropriate to include this clause in the solicitation.
113. QUESTION:  G.1 The FAR allows for  progress payments every two weeks on SB contracts. There are clauses that do not apply to this contract that should be deleted, e.g., liquidation, inventory, achieving title, non-durable clause. Since this is a small business set aside, recommend this clause be confined to partial payments to the contractor under the FAR for small business progress payments. 

RESPONSE:. Because this is a standard FAR Clause, the Contracting Officer does not have the authority to change its content.
114. QUESTION: H.13 The terms stated here are inconsistent with the current terms in Clause B.4. They should be consistent with the final disposition of clause B.4. 

RESPONSE: Clause B.4 and H.13 were modified to be consistent, see notes at end of each clause.

115. QUESTION: I.2 This is evidently an IDIQ fixed price incentive type contract without final funding being available at the time of the contract so the total contract price is not known in advance and the adjustments under (d) (2) (ii) are made on a task order basis under the terms to be established by any revision to B.4.  The data submission terms under (c) should be consistent with the standard GSFC 533 reporting and invoicing CDRL requirements.  

RESPONSE: I.2(c) Data submission.  (1) Within 30 days after the end of the month in which the Contractor has delivered the last unit of supplies and completed the services specified by item number in the individual task order, the Contractor shall submit in the format of Table 15-2, FAR 15.408, or in any other form on which the parties agree  to provide a detailed statement of all costs incurred up to the end of that month in performing all work under the items or deliverables within the individual task order.  The data submission can be in the form of the 533 reporting after all services are performed.

116. QUESTION:  I.8 (d) The contractor should not be required to identify any subcontract in the model contract under this clause. The need for subcontracts can’t be determined until the task orders are known.  

RESPONSE: The clause has been revised to state “NONE”.

117. QUESTION: I.17 It appears that NASA’s goal for SBs and SDBs is higher than 8% these days. Recommend the percentage reflect current goals, e.g., 20%. 

RESPONSE: The Contracting Officer does not have the authority to modify this clause.  However, there is no subcontracting plan required under this solicitation.
118. QUESTION: Section B.2 (c). We recommend annual baselining of the environment, to include workload requirements. A variance of workload requirements greater than 5% about the baseline would result in a re-negotiation of the price for the affected services. Further, we recommend that if the Government’s unilateral upward adjustment of 20% increase in workload should cause the Contractor’s corresponding price to exceed the 125% of Target Cost ceiling in B.4, the Contractor and the Government shall mutually agree to the services to be delivered at the ceiling price.

RESPONSE: Clause B.2 refers to the potential adjustment to the maximum ordering value of the entire contract (all tasks combined). An adjustment to the maximum ordering amount would not necessarily result in an increase in the target or ceiling price of any individual task orders.
119. QUESTION: Section B.4. We recommend that the FPI cost sharing percentages for overruns and underruns be negotiated on a task order basis.  The Task Order Statements of Work could ask that the contractor recommend them and the government would provide adequate information such as a deliverable schedule and clearly defined requirements to enable the contractor to adequately assess risk.

RESPONSE: The Government has determined that it is most appropriate to establish the share ratios at the contract level as opposed to the task level.
120. QUESTION: Section B.4. The RFP states that the ceiling price is not to exceed 125% of Target Cost.  Please clearly define the meaning of Target Cost. 

RESPONSE: The Target cost is the negotiated cost for each task order.

121. QUESTION:  Section H.9 (b) (1). “Within 30 days after contract award, a Contractor shall submit to the Contracting Officer for NASA approval an IT Security Plan, Risk Assessment, and FIPS 199, Standards for Security Categorization of Federal Information and Information Systems, Assessment. These plans and assessments, including annual updates shall be incorporated into the contract as compliance documents.”  We recommend that the 30-day requirement be changed so the system is reported to the cognizant NASA C&A program office within 30 days, and then the clock starts for providing this documentation within a defined time period (usually 6 months).

RESPONSE: The 30 day requirement highlighted in Clause H.9 is current NASA policy and the Contracting Officer does not have the authority to revise this requirement.
122. QUESTION:  Section H.9  Please make the NASA Agency and Center security requirements standards available to bidders.

RESPONSE: These documents are already available in the GUEST Reference Library in the IT Security Folder.

123. QUESTION: Section H.13. Please explain the terms “Price Incentive” and “Performance Incentive” as used in the clause.

RESPONSE: Price Incentive is the ability to incentivize contractors based on target price established under the individual task orders. Performance Incentive is the ability to incentivize contractors based on performance measurements and technical performance standards established under the individual task orders.

124. QUESTION: Section M .4 Subfactor A- page 116, in paragraph 3 … the PWS, SLA’s and metrics will also be evaluated against industry certifications programs and best practices as defined by IT Service Consultant TBD.”  We recommend choosing Pink Elephant as the IT consultant.  Pink is the leader in ITIL consulting, education and assessment and have partnered with the Office of Government Commerce to co-author many of the ITIL books in use today.

RESPONSE: The Government has defined the IT Service Consultant as Forrester Research, Inc. and Gartner, Inc. for industry best practices. 

125. QUESTION Section M.4 Subfactor A -  page 116. also in paragraph 3.  The applicable certification standards for the SOO performance objectives are___ TBD____.  Since the proposals will be evaluated against ISO 20000, we recommend that the vendor team be CMMI level 3, and ISO 9001:2000 certified and that the vendor team have proven experience in implementing the ITIL Frame Work.  We further recommend that the selected key personnel be ITIL-certified. 

RESPONSE:  The RFP has been revised to require the successful Offeror obtain either ITIL certification or compliance by Year 2 of the GUEST Contract. 
126. QUESTION: SOO 5.2 Pg.4 Sentence 2 “…the contractor shall coordinate effectively and proactively with the Network Operations and Desktop Services Program contractors...”  We recommend that Network Operations and Desktop Services be part of Tier 2 and Tier 3. In our experience this has been the most effective way to support customer and, in 6.1.1 Pg.5, Paragraph 2, Sentence 1 the SOO states that Configuration, Change, and Service Level Management are Tier 2 and Tier 3. 

RESPONSE: Network Operations and Desktop Services shall remain under existing contracts. The GUEST contractor shall coordinate Enterprise Service Desk/Call Center activities with appropriate non-GUEST service providers.

127. QUESTION: SOO Section 6.1.1 Enterprise Service Desk/Call Center.  In paragraph 2 page 4, we recommend that you also include the interaction of Problem Management in addition to service level management, change management and configuration management processes.

RESPONSE: The SOO will be modified to include problem management interaction with the Enterprise Service Desk.

128. QUESTION: SOO Section 6.1.1.  We recommend adding section here requiring the contractor to implement a knowledge management system that will be used by Tier 1-3 in the resolution of incidents, storing and updating work-a-rounds and documentation.

RESPONSE:  The Government has reviewed this recommendation and determined that no change was necessary to this section of the SOO.

129. QUESTION: SOO Section 6.1.1.  We further recommend this section be updated to require the Enterprise Service Desk to serve as the single point of contact and transition into total contact ownership over the period of performance in accordance with the ITIL maturity levels. 

RESPONSE: The Government has reviewed this recommendation and determined that no change was necessary to this section of the SOO.

130. QUESTION: SOO 6.1.1 Pg. 6- Paragraph 3 implies that Problem Management should not be implemented until Incident Management can produce reliable output. Trending shouldn’t start until reliable data is aggregated. We recommend that Problem Management be implemented with Incident Management. Problem Management’s role in creating workarounds assists Incident Management with the quick restoration of service, while its root cause analysis proactively assists Incident Managing by reducing the potential number of possible tickets created.

RESPONSE: The Government has reviewed this recommendation and determined that no change was necessary to this section of the SOO.
131. QUESTION: SOO 6.1.2 Pg. 6. Please clarify whether training is to be provided only for GSFC applications. We recommend that more information be provided regarding GSFC’s current training curriculum, so that we may more effectively plan the training requirements for vendor staff development and deployment.

RESPONSE: GUEST training is not meant to replace the existing Agency and Center IT training curriculum. GUEST training shall address specific IT service delivery issues of Agency IT Solutions to improve customer satisfaction. The GUEST contractor will provide training for applications developed under GUEST.

132. QUESTION: SOO 6.1.2 Pg.6 We require more information regarding the request for timely notification for planned and unplanned outages for system maintenance, augmentation, or degradation of applicable IT resources information, which is stated in sentence 2. Please provide timely notification for planned downtime regarding system maintenance and augmentation, and separate notifications regarding outages and service degradation.

RESPONSE: In accordance with this objective, Offerors shall propose how they intend to provide timely notification for planned downtime regarding system maintenance and augmentation, and separate notifications regarding outages and service degradation.

133. QUESTION: SOO Section 6.5.6 Inventory Management. “Provide the Government an initial property inventory baseline at the start of the contract and bi-annual updates reflecting baseline changes.”  We recommend allowing a time period for the contractor to audit the property management system in order to allow for an accurate baseline. Coming into the contract the contractor will need to review the current property management system and verify its accuracy before providing a baseline. 

RESPONSE: The contractor shall perform this activity during the contract phase-in period.

134. QUESTION: SOO Section 7.2 Vulnerability Scanning.  We recommend providing a list of current tools, including “Agency mandated tools” that are deployed at GSFC for this and other functions.

RESPONSE: NASA mandated vulnerability scanning tool is Foundscan, from the Foundstone company, a subsidiary of McAfee.  The GSFC Security Services Program is also providing vulnerability scanning services on the OAIT LAN using the NESSUS/Lightning Console for vulnerability scanning.
135. QUESTION: SOO Section 7.5 Identity Management. “Provide GSFC Information Technology Security Managers with accurate and timely notice of incidents of the lack of use of Agency-approved encryption of Sensitive But Unclassified materials, where materials are transferred by electronic means.”  We recommend making this requirement a part of 7.4, Incident Response.

RESPONSE: The Government has considered this recommendation and determined that this requirement should remain in Section 7.5.
136. QUESTION: SOO Section 6.6.1 Enterprise Back-Office Services.  Please provide information on the following:

a. What is the full scope of the Back-Office Services? How many servers?

b. What hardware platforms are in use?  How many of each?

c. What back-office software is in use, on what platforms? How many users?

d. Will the NASA directives and standards referenced be provided to potential bidders?

e. Do the Configuration Management and Change Control procedures referenced exist today? Does NASA want the contractor to continue to use existing procedures, revise them, or develop new ones?

f. Does the Lifecycle management process referred to exist today? Is the contractor expected to use the existing process, revise it as necessary, or develop new ones?

g. Can NASA provide an estimate of the number of services and servers to be decommissioned each year?

h. How many CIO reports and data calls are expected each year?

i. How may Enterprise Wide technical working and support groups exist, and how often do they meet.

RESPONSE:

a., b., c., This information is provided in the GUEST Reference Library, Section 4.1.5. 

d. All applicable directives and standards will be placed in the GUEST Reference Library. 

e. Yes, However, Offerors shall propose how they intend to provide configuration management and change control as part of their life cycle process.
f. Yes.  Lifecycle management processes exist today.  However, Offerors are free to implement service lifecycle processes to improve the existing processes..  

g. The Government cannot estimate the number of services and/or servers that will be decommissioned over the life of this contract.  

h. CIO data calls are ad hoc and cannot be estimated. The past actuals are approximately 10-15 per year.  The level and complexity of the data calls vary widely.  

i. There are several enterprise-wide technical working groups that exist that meet at various intervals, including the postmasters working group, agency Internel Protocol Address Management System (IPAMS) , NASA Account Management System (NAMS), PKI, and Network Architecture Board (NAB).

137. QUESTION: SOO Section 6.6.2 Business Application Development. Please provide information on the following:

a. How many application systems are to be supported? How many are custom applications, and how many COTS / GOTS?

b. What is the expected level of development activity (number of applications, expected complexity)?

c. What technologies are in use (i.e., programming languages, development frameworks, operating systems), and how many applications for each technology exist?

d. How many new application development projects are anticipated each year?

RESPONSE: 

a. The Government has provided this information in the GUEST Reference Library (Section 4.6.2).  

b. The Offerors can gauge a sense of current work by reviewing the current tasks in the GUEST Reference Library.  

c. The Government has provided this information in the GUEST Reference Library. 

d. The Offerors can gauge a sense of current work by reviewing the current tasks in the GUEST Reference Library section.

138. QUESTION: SOO section 6.6.3 Property Management. Does a current complete inventory exist? Will the contractor be expected to perform a complete inventory, or only providing updates to the existing inventory?

RESPONSE: All Government Property is maintained in the Agency’s NASA Property System.  The contractor will be expected to perform an inventory during the phase-in period.

139. QUESTION: SOO Section 6.7 Specialized Engineering Services. Does “system” in this context mean hardware / system software or application software? If applications, COTS/GOTS or custom applications? What is the number of implementations expected? What hardware / software platforms are involved?

RESPONSE: Section 6.7 of the SOO addresses tasks in network and other specialized engineering functions that may arise as Agency Acquisition Strategies are implemented.

Section 6.7 of the SOO, the word “systems” is meant to reference hardware or software systems and any associated application software. Primarily, GSFC intends to issue tasks covering network engineering and other specialized engineering functions that may arise from the Agency I3P Acquisition Strategy.  The exact number of implementations is unknown.
140. QUESTION: SOO Section 6.8 Server and Systems Administration.  How many applications, desktops, servers and other resources?

RESPONSE: Please refer to the GUEST Reference Library Section 4.8 in “Desktop Management Solutions”.
141. QUESTION: SOO Section 6.8.1 Systems Application Administration. Please provide information on the following:

How many applications?  How many COTS, GOTS, custom applications? 

What languages, platforms, operating systems are in use?  

Does NASA have support contracts for all COTS / GOTS applications, and will these remain in place?

Do existing systems have the capability to provide automated notification of problems, or must manual monitoring be performed? 

During what hours is monitoring required?

RESPONSE:  The Government has provided this information in the GUEST Reference Library section 4.6.2.  Offerors should assume that automated notification systems are limited or non-existent.  Offerors can gauge a sense of current work by reviewing the current tasks in the GUEST Reference Library section 4.6.2.
142. QUESTION SOO Section 6.8.2 Engineering Services. Does “systems” refer to application software, hardware / software platforms, or the combination of both?  Approximately how many new systems each year?  How many systems are anticipated to be “modernized” each year? What languages and technologies are in use, and planned?

RESPONSE: This section of the SOO specifically refers to system engineering and integration management functions that cross-cut ITCD IT Services. In Section 6.7 of the SOO, the word “systems” is meant to reference hardware or software systems and any associated application software. Primarily, GSFC intends to issue tasks covering network engineering and other specialized engineering functions that may arise from the Agency I3P Acquisition Strategy. The number of systems to be modernized cannot be estimated at this time. Only languages and technologies that are aligned with the Agency’s Enterprise Architecture will be used.
143. QUESTION: SOO Section 6.8.3 Systems Analysis Services. What is the expected number of systems (new and existing) for which analysis services will be needed each year? How many COTS / GOTS and how many custom systems in each category?

RESPONSE: This section is duplicative and will be deleted.

144. QUESTION: SOO Section 2.0 Background. The ITCD was formed in 2005 to consolidate the delivery of Enterprise services. What progress has been achieved in actually consolidating the individual departments into a consolidated environment?  Have they begun the consolidation effort or do they expect that under this contract the contractor will consolidate the individual domains into an enterprise structure?  

RESPONSE:  The creation of ITCD was not for the sole purpose of consolidating the delivery of Enterprise services. However, progress for the ITCD is best summarized through its work on IT Governance, the establishment of the IT Program Management Office, and the establishment of the Goddard IT Transition teams. GSFC has a rich science and engineering culture with disparate needs for heterogeneous IT solutions and services. Currently, it is not anticipated that the successful Offeror would have a task to consolidate the individual domains into an enterprise structure
145. QUESTION: SOO Section 4.0 Period and Place of Performance. Support will be provided at Goddard Spaceflight Center in Greenbelt and Wallops Island Flight Facility in Wallops Island Va.  What is the distribution and number of users that will be supported? 
RESPONSE: Greenbelt has approximately 7000 users, and Wallops Flight Facility has approximately 1000 users.

146. QUESTION: SOO Section 6.1.1 Enterprise Service Desk/Call Center. It is mentioned that GSFC is using Remedy. It states that GSFC wants to use an industry proven, open, non-proprietary COTS-based solution.  Does GSFC want something other than Remedy?
RESPONSE: GSFC would like to remain in alignment with the Agency EA. Using standard tools like Remedy for service incident management will accomplish this. However, the contractor shall propose Remedy or another industry proven, open, non-proprietary COTS-based solution that meets GSFC’s objectives.

147. QUESTION: SOO Section 6.3  Backup and Storage. What type of backup software and storage hardware are they currently using?  Is GSFC using tapes, SAN storage, Comvault etc?

RESPONSE:  Tivoli is the product used for backup storage.  Currently it retains a full copy of all data, back-ups are greater than 600GB per night, and the storage size is greater than 10TB.

148. QUESTION: RTO 1- Enterprise Service Call Center- Please provide background information on what type of remote control tool is available if any. If none is available, could the contractor propose to use one for remote support of Goddard onsite and Offsite support? This could be critical for delivering Tier 1 support offsite.
RESPONSE: Each Offeror’s approach will be evaluated for its ability to meet the performance objectives set forth in the RFP
149. QUESTION: RTO 1- Regarding the requirement that 90% of the calls answered with in 60 seconds, 100% of the calls answered in 120 seconds and less then 3 percent abandoned rate, we recommend that the 100% be changed to 97%. This allows for abandoned calls, for which the industry is 3%.  In our experience, all service desks do experience emergency situations which could cause abandoned calls.

RESPONSE: Abandoned call rate is a separate metric from answered calls; accordingly, there is no change to the RFP.

150. QUESTION: RTO 1- “… the contractor shall work closely to establish service level agrees with non-ITCD help desk (quality 20) to take over tier 1 responsibility.” We recommend that GSFC:

a. Clarify what is meant by quality 20

b. Provide background and explanation is needed on the non-ITCD help desk and what they do, work load statistics and call types of their tier 1.  

c. Provide the operating level agreements (OLA) and underpinning vendor contracts that are currently in place and their service level requirements. This is needed to establish service level agreements for the Enterprise Service Center.

RESPONSE: This requirement has been removed from RTO 1.

151. QUESTION: RTO 1 - “…the contractor shall operate and maintain a government provided service catalog COTS software…” We recommend GFSC provide some background as to whether the NewScale product is already implemented, how many services are currently published, what is the current maintenance cycle and update periods and are all the modules listed currently deployed? In addition, it would be helpful to know if Goddard has already established its service templates in the NewScale Service Request Libraries. 

RESPONSE: For purposes of this RTO, the contractor has been given the noted software with no services developed.  The contractor shall establish and maintain the service catalog including any processes and procedures needed to enter, change, or delete services in the catalog.  

152. QUESTION: RTO 1 - Deliverables Page 5, under table.  The draft RTO states in #1 under performance standard that some tier 2 and tier 3 services are provided by other organizations. We recommend that GFSC provide a breakdown of what services are performed by these other organization and to what extent they are provided and consumed, that would allow for a more thorough response to planning the OLAs needed and interactions needed between the Enterprise Service Desk and these other organizations. 

RESPONSE:  The RTO does not assume that any Organizational Level Agreements (OLAs) with the non-ITCD help desks are in place, and Offerors should propose accordingly.

153. QUESTION: RTO 1 Paragraph 4, Task Requirement. “Tier 3 support and the development of new known-errors and the associated work-a-rounds for delivery to Knowledge Database.” We recommend that Tier 2 also be included in building the knowledgebase. Tier 2 serves as an escalation point for Tier 1 and thus will poses much needed incident resolution knowledge that must be documented and populated in the knowledgebase.

RESPONSE:  The RTO already currently states that Tier 2 performs problem management…. “and the development of new known-errors and the associated work-arounds for delivery to Knowledge Database.”

154. QUESTION: RTO 1 Paragraph 3, Task Requirements.  Can NASA provide a detailed breakdown of the types of calls received, number of calls by type, and the technologies supported by the service support center? 

RESPONSE: This information was provided in the technical briefing provided on June 23, 2008, and is posted on the NASA Acquisition Internet Service located at http://nais.msfc.nasa.gov/cgi-bin/eps/bizops.cgi?gr=D&pin=51  .
155. QUESTION: RTO 1 -Will NASA provide the space, phone lines, and other infrastructure necessary to support the Tier 1 Help Desk, or is the contractor expected to provide these? Will the contractor take over an existing off-site location, or provide their own? Does an existing call center that meets all the requirements of this RTO exist?

RESPONSE:  The RTO states that Tier 1 is to be located off-site.  The contractor is responsible for the off-site Tier 1 logistics and infrastructure. There is no existing call center established to meet this set of requirements. The contractor will not take over an existing off-site location. 

156. QUESTION: RTO 1 What, and how many, systems will the contractor have to integrate with Remedy? 

RESPONSE:  The Contractor shall propose any or new Remedy automated interfaces with other systems.  Existing interfaces were provided in the GUEST Industry Day technical briefing provided on June 23, 2008, which is posted on the NASA Acquisition Internet Service located at http://nais.msfc.nasa.gov/cgi-bin/eps/bizops.cgi?gr=D&pin=51.
157. QUESTION: RTO 1 Do the service level agreements referenced in paragraph 6 currently exist? Can NASA provide details of these SLAs?

RESPONSE:  The applicable SLAs are available in the GUEST Reference Library for the Offerors’ reference.
158. QUESTION: RTO 1 If a sample of users is truly random, how can it be guaranteed that 50% of the sample has submitted tickets?

RESPONSE: For purposes of responding to RTO 1, Offerors shall assume that the number of sample users is truly random, and, that 50% of this random sample submitted tickets.
159. QUESTION: - What ITIL processes are currently in place and what are maturity levels of those processes?

RESPONSE:  The Government has no ITIL processes in place.

160. QUESTION: RTO 3- Data Center Services-  Please provide the following information: 

a. Are the weekends and holidays exempt from the 72 hour response timeframe?
b. What are current inventory counts? 

c. How accurate does NASA consider them to be? 

d. Does NASA currently have the accurate license status for all software?

RESPONSE:  

a. The government requires vendor services on a 24x7x365 basis and expects the Offerors to propose how they will meet these requirements. 

b. This information is provided in the GUEST Reference Library under section 4.1.5. 

c. The inventory is up to date as of the date of posting. 

d. The government has current software and hardware maintenance agreements in place for the Data Center.
161. QUESTION: RTO 3-

Is the 95% operational capability currently met for all systems? How is this metric to be calculated? If the Operations are off-site, does the contractor need to provide the location and infrastructure?  If yes, what will NASA provide, and what must the contractor provide? What does “downtime…shall be minimized mean? Is there a specific SLA to be met?  If not, how will this be measured? What are “regular operating hours”?

RESPONSE:  Overall, operations within the data center are expected to adhere to a 95% up time.  However, certain applications, including but not limited to Active Directory, LISTS, and NODIS are currently maintained at a 99.99% uptime – the RTO has been modified to reflect appropriate metrics.  The Offeror will be responsible for establishing the processes and procedures to support their proposed metrics. The Offeror must provide all infrastructure needs for meeting the requirements.  The Offeror will generate the Service Level Agreements and associated processes as part of the RTO.

162. QUESTION: RTO 3- If a sample of users is truly random, how can it be guaranteed that 50% of the sample has submitted tickets?

RESPONSE: For purposes of responding to RTO 3, Offerors shall assume that the number of sample users is truly random, and, that 50% of this random sample submitted tickets.

163. QUESTION: RTO 3- Please provide additional information on the current environment and the virtualization plan and timeline. 

RESPONSE:   The Government provided information about the existing environment in the technical briefing on June 23, 2008, which is posted on the NASA Acquisition Internet Service site.  The Government has provided all current information on the data visualization plan in the GUEST Reference Library.

164. QUESTION: RTO 4 - Application Development and Sustaining Engineering - Does NASA have an estimate of the number / complexity of applications to be developed or sustained? What languages, platforms, frameworks, and other technologies are in use? What tools are currently used? Who are the referenced support providers, or how many are there?

RESPONSE:  The Government will provide this information in the GUEST Reference Library Section 4.6.2. (file names: COTS List and System Inventory).

 165. QUESTION: Section L.11, p.89 L.13, pp 97-99 M.4 pp 117-118.  Table of proposal with page limits does not include Subfactor C and Subfactor D. Are Subfactor C Management Approach and Subfactor D Safety and Health excluded from the 200 page allocation of the Mission Suitability Volume?  If not, please provide page allocations.  This would provide consistency with proposal requirement specified in L.13 and the evaluation criteria in M.4.

RESPONSE: There are no page limitations by subfactor. The page limitation specifies the elements of the Mission Suitability Volume that are excluded from the page limitation. Some elements of Subfactor C and the Subfactor D (Safety and Health Plan) are excluded from the 200 page limitation for the Mission Suitability Volume.

166. QUESTION: Section L.15 (b), p. 108.  Past Performance Questionnaires must be delivered in a sealed envelope. For flexibility would NASA GSFC allow the customer references to submit these questionnaires by fax or in PDF attached to an email?

RESPONSE:  The RFP will be revised to allow for past performance questionnaires to be faxed.

167. QUESTION: Section M, p,115. Please confirm that the independent consultant would be excluded from bidding.

RESPONSE: Yes, the independent IT consultants are excluded from proposing.

168. QUESTION: Section C, D, E, F, G, H, I, J, L, M.  The RFP number in the header is different from the Cover Letter, Section B, Draft SOO & Draft RTO. Assuming this is a typo, reference the same RFP number (NNG08230770J) throughout.

RESPONSE: The Draft RFP Number is NNG08230770J.

The Final RFP Number will be NNG08230770R.

169. QUESTION: Table of Contents.  Include all sections in the Table of Contents. It does not currently include Sections L & M. 

RESPONSE: Sections L and M are intentionally excluded from the Table of Contents; these sections are not part of the resultant contract. 
170. QUESTION: The ITCD was formed in 2005 to consolidate the delivery of Enterprise services. What progress has been achieved in actually consolidating the individual departments into a consolidated environment?  Have they begun the consolidation effort or do they expect that under this contract the contractor will consolidate the individual domains into an enterprise structure?  If not there is significant work involved in migrating and consolidating email, active directory, inventory etc.

RESPONSE: The creation of ITCD was not for the sole purpose of consolidating the delivery of Enterprise services. However, progress for the ITCD is best summarized through its work on IT Governance, the establishment of the IT Program Management Office, and the establishment of the Goddard IT Transition teams. GSFC has a rich science and engineering culture with disparate needs for heterogeneous IT solutions and services. Currently, it is not anticipated that the successful Offeror would have a task to consolidate the individual domains into an enterprise structure.
171. QUESTION:  To design an effective solution and to best estimate costs and resources the bidders need to know the extent and status of GFSC’s consolidation efforts. This contract is to begin in October 2008 and the deployment of Vista, which began January 2008, will not be completed until April 2009.  Please provide a means to understand what, if any, inventories have been consolidated into an Enterprise Assets database at both locations. Please also provide for performing a baseline inventory of all equipment and catalog or record the type and quantity of equipment and users there at both locations. 

RESPONSE:  The GUEST contract is not responsible for the implementation of Microsoft Vista nor for overall management of the Desktop Environment at the GSFC.

172. QUESTION:  Please provide information on who controls the backbone.  Since GUEST is a performance based effort, if the backbone network management is not under GUEST, network performance can affect our SLAs.  If another vendor controls the backbone, we would want to negotiate an MOU or SLA with that entity. 

RESPONSE:  Network Operations requirements are currently provided by the Agency’s Unified NASA Information Technology Services (UNITeS) contract (#NNM04AA02C).  UNITeS manages NASA’s network backbone through the NISN Program. Additionally, UNITeS also supplies network engineering and operations support the GSFC administrative network.
173. QUESTION: Section 5.2 Increase Organizational Efficiency  Please identify the Network Operations and Desktop Services Program contractor(s) and their contract numbers.

RESPONSE: Network Operations requirements are currently provided by the Agency’s Unified NASA Information Technology Services (UNITeS) contract (#NNM04AA02C).  Desktop Services Program requirements are currently provided by the Outsourcing Desktop Initiative for NASA (ODIN) contract (NAS5-98145).

174. QUESTION: Section 6.1.2 Training.  In this section it states: Provide timely notification of planned and unplanned outages for system maintenance, augmentation or degradation of applicable IT resources. Please define timely notification for unplanned outages?

RESPONSE:  In their proposal submission, Offerors shall define what “timely notification’ is for planned downtime and how they intend to provide this notification.
175. QUESTION: Section 6.5.2 Asset Management. For the requirement to provide customer training to ensure successful operations of new systems and equipment, does this include training on both hardware and software?  If software, only launch and access, or detailed training on software use?  If detailed, only on base applications, or specialized/custom as well?

RESPONSE:  The objective is to support customer training on software only, as needed.  Offerors shall propose how they intend to provide successful operations of new systems and equipment.  

176. QUESTION: Section 6.5.3. Will Applications/Security/Engineering/etc. be in-scope for change management?

RESPONSE:  Yes, the contractor change management process shall address all activities under GUEST.

177. QUESTION: Section 6.1.2.  Do these applications consist of COTS products or COTS and custom developed?  Also, can a list of enterprise applications be provided along with the platforms they are running on and database types if applicable?

RESPONSE:  The applications may be COTS, Agency, or GSFC-developed. GUEST training is not meant to replace the existing Agency and Center IT training curriculum.  It is targeted training that augments Agency or Center IT training to address specific IT service delivery issues and improve customer satisfaction.  The GUEST contractor will provide training for applications developed under GUEST.  See the GUEST Reference Library section 4.1.5 for a list of current applications.

178. QUESTION: Section10. “During the initial 30-day transition period, the GUEST Contractor is fully accountable and responsible for successful performance of all objectives and requirements of the contract.” Should this statement read “After the initial..” ? 

RESPONSE: The SOO Objective 10 will be revised to state that the contractor is not ‘fully responsible ‘ for all contract objectives and requirements until the end of the 30-day phase in period.

179. QUESTION: What is the current status of the organization moving towards Industry Standards, BPR, BPI such as ITIL, CMMI, ISO, Lean Six, etc?  Have these standards been adopted and fully implemented within the organizations or are they at a percentage 50%, 30% etc.?

RESPONSE:   The Government has just begun its efforts and fully intends to implement ITIL and IT Service Management best practices in support of the GSFC Missions.  

180. QUESTION: RTO 1.  The call center is off site according to one of these documents.  Is it under NASA's control or is the current contractor providing the call center at one of their facilities?
RESPONSE: .The RTO 1 Tier 1 call center shall be proposed off site.  Currently, the call center for the Center Network Environment is located on-site and the ODIN support call center is located off-site.
181. QUESTION: Exhibit D/Section 8/Page 13- What would NASA’s view be of a situation where a contractor held a contract under the Solutions for Enterprise-Wide Procurement (SEWP) Program? Would NASA prefer that this contractor not perform work in that area, leaving it to a teaming partner? Or would NASA allow that contractor to perform that work as long it did so in accordance with a NASA-approved OCI plan?

RESPONSE: The Government has no restrictions on a contractor held SEWP contract proposing or teaming under the GUEST solicitation, in accordance with the approved OCI plan. 
182. QUESTION: Section B.5/Page 6- Recommend NASA develop further delineation to the cost sharing incentive model as the current scenario includes only contractor induced underruns and overruns. Please consider a similar cost sharing for target cost underruns and overruns caused by NASA.

RESPONSE: Costs growths that may be within the control of NASA or its contractors may be subject to review for potential equitable adjustment to the applicable contract.  Costs that are within the control of the GUEST contractor, its subcontractors or its suppliers or vendors will be considered a normal cost of doing business and not be subject to an equitable adjustment.
183. QUESTION:  Section H.9/Subsection (b)/Subsection(1)/Page 48

Please clarify when the security compliance documents required within 30 days of

contract award will be executed? Realistically, it may be difficult to execute

components of the requirement within 30 days of contract award.

RESPONSE: The IT Security Plan is due 30 calendar days after the contract effective date, for review and approval to incorporate at the contract level.  The IT Security Office will work with the contractor for compliance and applicability prior to approval and incorporation under the contract.
184. QUESTION:  Section M.4/Subfactor A/Page 115

Recommend NASA clarify with specificity the industry certification programs being

evaluated in each specific portion of a proposal. For example, in a service delivery

framework, will ITIL be used to evaluate personnel; as a service delivery standard,

will ISO2000 be used to evaluate an organization and its processes? Neither ITIL nor

ISO2000 outline industry best practices from an SLA perspective. Clarification of the

certification programs is more likely to yield an appropriate evaluation of similar

measures.

RESPONSE:  The Government will evaluate the Offeror’s PWS and technical approach narrative, which include proposed techniques, procedures, service level agreements and associated metrics, for completeness, overall balance, and consistency with all parts of the proposal. The PWS, SLAs and metrics will also be evaluated against industry certification programs (i.e., ITIL and ISO20000), and industry best practices as defined by IT Service Consultant Forrester Research, Inc. and Gartner, Inc.  
185. QUESTION:  

a. RTO 1- Recommend NASA provide the SLA associated with the operations of the current Enterprise Service Call Center, or the current components, as part of the GUEST Document Library. 

b. Also recommend NASA provide historical data on requests received by the Call Center(s). This data would include: Total end-user population supported; Total number of desktops, laptops, and PDAs supported; General number and profile of end-users using each major application; Category of calls received by Tier 1, Tier 2, and Tier 3 (detailed categories beyond the basic categories of incident management, problem management, and request fulfillment); Remedy (or similar tool) reports, trend analysis, training indicators; Number of calls received under each detailed category by Tier 1, Tier 2, and Tier 3, including a break-down by priority level (e.g. high, medium, low); Average time for resolution in each detailed category by Tier 1, Tier 2, and Tier 3; Actual work hours (elapsed and worked) for resolution in each detailed category; Tier 1, Tier 2, and Tier 3.

RESPONSE:  

a. The contractors shall establish and maintain SLAs with the IT service providers. 

b. See the GUEST Reference Library sections 4.1.1 and section 4.8 in “Desktop Management Solutions” for available statistical information.

186.  QUESTION:  RTO 1- Recommend NASA provide as much detail as possible concerning the roles, responsibilities and work description concerning the ODIN and GUEST interface to include: Provide the differences and boundaries between GUEST and ODIN in responsibilities for end-user support; Describe the current process for hand-offs under incident management, problem management, and request fulfillment.

RESPONSE:  The Offeror shall propose the technical approach associated with the development of roles, responsibilities, processes, procedures, SLAs, etc. to ensure interfaces with the ODIN, UNITeS, and other GSFC Contracts.  Offerors should review the GUEST Reference Library section 4.1.1 for additional information about the current environment.

187. QUESTION:  RTO 2- Recommend NASA provide clear boundaries and areas of responsibilities where multiple stakeholders (projects, contracts - ODIN, teams, and contractors) are involved.

RESPONSE: Offerors are free to propose delineation of boundaries and areas of responsibility in their responses.

188. QUESTION: RTO 3-Recommend NASA provide a more comprehensive list of the services provided by the Data Center. Paragraph four appears to be a partial list, missing key areas such as system administration, application hosting, and server set-up.

RESPONSE:  The contractor is responsible for all aspects of Data Center operations.

189. QUESTION: RTO 3- Recommend NASA provide the SLA associated with the current Data Center operation and it’s components as part of the GUEST Document Library. Also recommend NASA provide historical data for requests received by the Data

Center. This data would include: Total end-user population supported by the Data Center;

Category of requests received by Tier 1,Tier 2 and Tier 3 (detailed categories

below the basic categories of incident management, problem management, and

request fulfillment); Number of requests received under each detailed category by Tier 1, Tier 2, and Tier 3, including a break-down by priority level (e.g. high, medium, low); Average time (min. – max.) to resolve requests under each detailed category by

Tier 1, Tier 2, and Tier 3.

RESPONSE:  The contractor shall propose the SLAs for this RTO. The requested historical data is not available.
190. QUESTION: RTO 3- Recommend NASA provide technical specifications for the current operating environments (e.g. square footage, power, cooling, etc.)

RESPONSE:  The Government provided information about the current operating environments in the technical presentations on June 23, 2008, located at <http://prod.nais.nasa.gov/cgi-bin/eps/sol.cgi?acqid=129385-OTHER-004-001.ppt>.
191. QUESTION:  RTO 3- Please explain or clarify the difference in the numbers of servers listed as currently supported by the Data Center. This section cites “approximately 120 servers” as does Deliverable No. 2 on page 14. However, Attachment H provides a list of 158 servers.

RESPONSE:  The 120 servers refer to the number that are candidates for data virtualization.  The 158 number refers to all servers currently in the Data Center environment.  The RFP has been revised to clarify this information.
192. QUESTION: RTO 3- NASA has provided data from a pilot virtualization assessment for 50 servers in the GUEST Document Library. Recommend NASA provide all possible data on the remaining Data Center servers.

RESPONSE:  The Government has no further information available.
193. QUESTION: RTO 3- It is unclear whether this section describes the “as-is” or “to-be” state.  Do the 260 applications cited currently reside on the Data Center’s 120 servers? Or, is this where they will all reside upon completion of the Virtualization effort? If this section describes the “to-be” state, recommend NASA provide a description of the “as-is”state as well as the results of the study supporting the “to-be” state. Clearly specify the work to be performed. Does it include design and development?

RESPONSE:  RTO 3 is a task for the contractor to operate all aspects of the Data Center based on information provided in the RTO and their PWS.  Application and web-site design and development are not part of this RTO. Yes, the 260 applications are hosted in the Data on the 120 servers. Clearly specifying the work to be performed would contradict the concept of specifying our results and outcomes in the SOO. This is meant to describe our “as-is” state. We want the Offeror to propose the “to-be” state.
194. QUESTION: RTO 3- Are the 260 applications currently meeting the operational reliability standard of 95 percent availability within standard hours of operation?

RESPONSE:  Yes, this is the average availability standard. 

195. QUESTION: RTO 3- Recommend NASA provide existing ITCD Configuration Management and Change Control procedures as part of the GUEST Document Library.

RESPONSE:  The Government will include all formal procedures and other information in the GUEST Reference Library section 4.5.

196. QUESTION: RTO 3- Recommend NASA include specific solicitation requirements governing the ownership and control of hardware and software for Data Center operations, this is critical for operations under a virtualized model. For example, provide guidance for using contractor versus government hardware and software under a contractor installation scenario and a scenario where all or partial components are located within a government facility? How much flexibility will be permitted in the proposed

solution (i.e. usage on demand, just in time capacity, baseline for steady state with

optional resources available for surge or peak requirements)?

RESPONSE:  The Government has current responsibility for the hardware and software.  The contractor shall propose Data Center operations.
197. QUESTION: RTO 3- Please explain or clarify the difference in response times for resolution of requests for service. This section cites “full resolution within ten (10) working days of receipt.” However, Deliverable No. 3 (Hosting/Support Requests) on page 14 cites “…five (5) working days of receipt” for a similar request.

RESPONSE:  In both cases, full resolution of the issue is required within ten (10) working days; the five (5) days listed in the deliverables section refers to the time by which an estimate of the resources required to solve the problem is due.  The full resolution time of ten (10) days was omitted in error from the deliverables section and will be added to the RTO.
198. QUESTION: RTO 3- Recommend NASA further define what is meant by “operations support for hosted applications.” Does this simply refer to support for operating systems, or does it also refer to support for applications?

RESPONSE: The contractor is responsible for operational support of the servers, their operating systems, and applications hosted on the system. 

199. QUESTION: RTO 3- Recommend NASA provide a full list of applications hosted by the Data Center as part of the GUEST Document Library.

RESPONSE:  The list of applications will be added to the GUEST Reference Library section 4.6.2.

200. QUESTION: Exhibit D/Section 4/Page 3- Are there restrictions on the work or employees supporting GUEST at a contractor’s offsite facility? Examples to consider include Security clearance requirements for staff.  Under the envisioned catalogue of services scenario are employees required to exclusively support GUEST?

RESPONSE:  No, there are not any restrictions on the work or employees supporting GUEST at a contractor’s offsite facility. The Offeror shall propose the place of performance and PWS.

201. QUESTION: It is not clear which task orders the Government intends to issue at the beginning of the contract that will be a continuation of the three contracts cited as being replaced by the GUEST contract.  Even though GUEST is intended to be an IDIQ contract, bidders will be expected to propose a phase-in plan/schedule that will ensure continuity of applicable current services.  Also since the DRFP states that only parts of some of the contracts are included, it is not clear which parts the Government intends to exclude from GUEST. The Government should provide clearer intent/direction in the final RFP.

RESPONSE: Offerors’ Performance Work Statement should reflect all the objectives set forth in the Statement of Objectives.  The SOO’s have been designed to cover all aspects of information technology services which are required at the GSFC.  The SOO’s enable Offerors to make an assessment of the work performance required against measurable performance standards.  Moreover, the measurable performance standards in the SOO are set forth to have Offerors propose continuing innovative and cost effective methods of performing the work.  As the GUEST solicitation will result in an IDIQ contract, the Government cannot at this time define which tasks will be awarded at the start of the contract.
202. QUESTION:  B. 4-FIXED PRICE INCENTIVE - This section suggests that each task order can have its own target profit and ceiling price.  Please confirm that Table 2 in Attachment C is intended to be completed for each task order and does not set a single target profit for all awarded task orders.  Please confirm that the profit target set for each task order does not become a fee as a percentage of actual cost due to the application of the cost sharing for target cost underruns, i.e. the profit percentage is not reduced due to a cost underrun therefore becoming a “payment on a cost plus a percentage of cost basis”. We recommend the contractor receive 60% of the target cost underrun verses the proposed 20% of target cost underruns for any given Task Order.  
RESPONSE:  Offerors shall propose a target fee percentage that is a “not-to-exceed” (NTE) percentage used for pricing individual task orders.  Offerors may always propose a lower target fee percentage than the NTE percentage set forth in Attachment C when pricing individual task orders.  However, for pricing the RTO’s in this proposal, Offerors shall use the not-to-exceed task percentage set forth in Attachment C.  The NTE rates are used for pricing negotiated FPI tasks plans, and is not a cost-plus-percentage-of-cost arrangement.  The Government has evaluated the feedback received on the ratios set forth in the Draft RFP and determined them to be appropriate for this procurement.
203. QUESTION:  Does the Government intend to use an electronic task ordering system such as TOMS?
RESPONSE: Yes, the Government intends to use the NASA Task Order Management System (TOMS).

204. QUESTION:  E. 2-  XE "E. 3INSPECTION OF SERVICESFIXEDPRICE (52.246-4) (AUG 1996)
" The contractor is expected to furnish “all reasonable facilities and assistance for the safe and convenient performance of these duties” if the Government performs inspections or tests on the premises of the Contractor or a significant subcontractor, at no increase in contract price.  Please confirm that the Government will specify their requirements for contractor facility and infrastructure support when each task order is issued in order for the contractor to factor any costs into their task order target price.  

RESPONSE:  The Government will specify the requirements for contractor facility and infrastructure support when each task order is issued. Each task order issued will specify the place of performance.

205. QUESTION: Under “Period and Place of Performance” there are three distinct places of performance.  To have a better understanding of the current environment, it would be useful to know the current contractor staffing levels at each location.  Would the government please provide these numbers to help facilitate a smooth and efficient phase-in?

RESPONSE:  The Government has intentionally left the place of performance up to the discretion of the offeror.  The Government is seeking creative approaches to meeting the requirements set forth in the GUEST RFP.  Accordingly, providing information on the current labor force could be misleading, as this information may not be indicative of an optimal approach for meeting the new objectives.  The procurement has been structured to allow maximum flexibility to the offers and allow them to provide a unique approach to the objectives set forth in the RFP.  Offerors should use their IT expertise and the current IT market to determine the appropriate skill mix and rates for accomplishing the work under this contract.

206. QUESTION: H. 6-EXPORT LICENSES-  XE "H. 7EXPORT LICENSES (1852.225-70) (FEB 2000)
" Are there any Technical Assistance Agreements (TAAs) in place on the 3 cited contracts that will need to be executed by the GUEST contractor?

RESPONSE: No, there are no TAAs that apply.

207. QUESTION:  XE "I.21SECURITY CLASSIFICATION REQUIREMENTS (1852.204-75) (SEPT 19:9)
" Please provide a list of all current contract task orders that require access to and/or generation of classified information, facilities, or work in order for offerors to correctly plan for phase-in and personnel clearance processing.

RESPONSE: The Final RFP will indicate which functions require security clearances.  Security clearance at the secret level is required for intrusion incident analysis and investigation (ref: SOO 7.4).  Clearance is not required for tier 1 intrusion detection application operation.  Clearance is not required for the remaining elements of the Security Services Program objectives.

208. QUESTION:  Please confirm that the Statement of Work documents for NASA Contracts NAS5-32038 and NNG07DA01C, and NASA Task Order NNG07DA57D under GSA Millennia Contract GST0099ALD02 will all be provided in the procurement library prior to the release of the final RFP along with all other pertinent technical documents.

RESPONSE: Yes, the Statement of Work (SOW) for NAS5-02038 is in the library. The SOW under NNG07DA01C will be posted to the library.  NNG07 DA57D’s SOW is not approved for public release. 

209. QUESTION: Since the Offeror must prepare a Technical Proposal and Contractor Performance Work Statement that demonstrates the Offeror’s capability to perform the requirements set forth in the SOO,  

a. Does the Government intend to update the final RFP SOO to cover all elements of all three cited current contracts that will be replaced by GUEST?   The Offeror’s Technical Proposal must include a discussion of the personnel categories proposed under the contract and how the labor skill mix will be employed to accomplish the work in an effective and efficient manner.  There is also a requirement for a Total Compensation Plan and a Phase-In approach.  The GUEST contract is expected to be a follow-on to three existing contracts and will undoubtedly require continuity of services. 

b. The Government should provide the incumbent contract labor categories and descriptions/requirements in order to ensure that the Offerors have sufficient information to formulate their own TCP and phase-in/transition plans. The Government should provide complete information on the three incumbent contracts in the procurement library including the services on current task orders the GUEST contractor is expected to assume at contract start in order for Offerors to provide a detailed Phase-in Plan that addresses, at a minimum, the Offeror's approach to phase-in to ensure continuity and a smooth transition with the incumbent Contractors during the one month phase-in period. 

RESPONSE: 
A & B. Please refer to the answer to question number 201.
.

210. QUESTION: There are several places in the RTOs that specify specific products.  (i.e. Remedy as the trouble ticket system and new Scale Service Designer as the Service Catalog COTS Software).  

a.  Is not the intent, when issuing a SOO, to state requirements and not a solution?  

b. Requiring offerors to use specific products or tools may not allow the best solution to be made available.  We recommend requiring adherence to certain standards versus use of specific tools.  For example, in RTO 1, there is discussion of “establishing SLAs with non-ITCD Help Desk (quality (quantity) 20) to take over Tier 1 responsibilities”.  

c. Where are the other 20 Help Desks located and what is the call volume?

RESPONSE:  

a., b.  All RTOs are hypothetical and for evaluation purposes only.  Actual task orders will be issued based on the contractor’s performance work statement and Attachment C of the contract.  
c. This requirement has been removed from RTO 1.

211. QUESTION:  Will 533’s for the BASE contract be made available in the library?  

RESPONSE: No, the 533’s are considered proprietary information and are not available for release..

212. QUESTION: Is there an existing Service Call Center?  If so, where is the location and how many contractors support the current requirements?

RESPONSE:  Yes, a call center exists.  See the GUEST Reference Library Section 4.1.1.

213. QUESTION: In Section L.15 (b) – Prior Customer Evaluations (PPQs) the following sentence is confusing: “The offeror and any proposed significant subcontractors shall submit the questionnaires provided in Exhibit B to each of the above references to establish a record of past performance.”  Who are the ‘above references’?

RESPONSE: The references are the identified customers completing the Offerors and significant subcontractor’s past performance questionnaires.

214. QUESTION: It seems that the Government's plan to evaluate Offeror's certifications (i.e., ITIL and ISO20000 (AS20000?)), coupled with emphasis on labor categories, staffing, direct labor costs, cost reporting, the TCP, seems inconsistent with a fixed-price performance based contract based on meeting SOO requirements. We recommend solidifying the requirement to deliver results, innovation and flexibility rather than labor.  There seems to be an emphasis on maintaining incumbent tasking and staffing as evidenced by the TCP and the Phase-In requirements.

RESPONSE:  Submission of the Offerors’ Total Compensation Plan is required by FAR 52.222-46.  This is not meant to imply an emphasis on maintaining an incumbent tasking and staffing.  Rather, it is meant to ensure that the Offeror has the ability to attract and retain a work force in accordance with their proposed technical approach (whether through incumbent capture or through another proposed means.)  The TCP is required by the regulations whether the effort is a follow-on effort or a new requirement.
215. QUESTION: Section G.1(a)(1) page 18.  Progress payments are allowed up to 85% of individual task order value.  As an 8(a) SDB, it is a challenging financial burden to finance 15% of the cost of a task order well past the point when the costs are incurred.   As an alternative, suggest the Government consider withholding all fee dollars until the completion of a task.  This would ensure the Government withheld a sufficient amount of payment until task completion while minimizing the need for small businesses to pay costs months in advance of payment by the Government.

RESPONSE: The final RFP will clarify and increase the progress payment level to 95% for SDB as authorized by NFS 1832.501-1.
216. QUESTION: Section L.11(b)(1) Table, page 89. Please confirm that the Management Approach is part of the 200 page count limit.  

RESPONSE: There are no page limitations by subfactor. The page limitation specifies the elements of the Mission Suitability Volume that are excluded from the page limitation. Elements of Subfactor C and are excluded from the 200 page limitation for the Mission Suitability Volume..

217. QUESTION: Section L.13 Subfactor A, page 96. What is the planned date for start of phase-in? What is the planned date for start of contract performance?

RESPONSE: The anticipated start date for the Phase-in is March 2, 2009.  The anticipated started date for task order performance is April 1, 2009.

218. QUESTION: Section L.13 Subfactor C, page 98, has a paragraph on IT Security Requirements but no corresponding Section M paragraph. Please provide the corresponding Section M paragraph.

RESPONSE: The corresponding evaluation criterion is in Section M.4 subfactor C, fourth paragraph.

219. QUESTION: Section L.14.2(c), page 103. NOTE: - Instructions for RTO No. 1 indicate that the government will assess the offeror's proposed RTO No. 1 target price an onsite GSFC facilities expense, for evaluation purposes only, based on 75 square feet per person times a rate of $20 per square foot.  Will there be a similar assessment for use of government facilities, if proposed, for RTO No. 3, Data Center Services?   

RESPONSE: Clarification will be provided in the Final RFP that states RTOs shall not exceed 100 on-site personnel and all RTOs where on-site personnel are proposed will be assessed for government facilities at the $20 per square foot.
220. QUESTION: Section L.14.2(f), page 104.  The Government has requested an Onsite and an Offsite rate for Subcontractors.  Our standard accounting procedures include charging Offsite Facilities Costs as an ODC to a contract or individual tasks.  These Offsite Facility Costs are allocated to tasks based upon task offsite labor hours as a percentage of total offsite labor hours.  For proposal purposes, to include Offsite Facility Costs as a component of our offsite rates, please provide the planned number of offsite FTEs by contract year and by location [e.g., GSFC vicinity, Wallops vicinity].

RESPONSE:  The Offerors shall propose the planned number of offsite staffing per contract year.

221. QUESTION: Section M.4 Subfactor C, page 117, has a paragraph on Plan for Maintaining and Augmenting Staff but no corresponding Section L paragraph. Please provide the corresponding Section L paragraph.

RESPONSE:  The RFP is changed to remove the paragraph at Section M.4 Subfactor C “The Government will evaluate the Offeror’s overall plan for maintaining and augmenting a staff after assumption of full contract….”

222. QUESTION: Is the base period for RTO 1 two years? Is the base period for RTO 2, 3, AND 4 one year?

RESPONSE:  Yes, the periods of performance are correct.

223. QUESTION: RTO 1- Are the Tier 1 calls from the 20 non-ITCD help desks included in the 5000 call per week estimate.  If not, what is the expected volume from the non-ITCD help desks?

RESPONSE:  The requirement of providing Tier 1 support for the 20 non-ITCD help desks has been removed from RTO 1.  The volume of calls, e-mails, and web requests remains as stated in RTO 1.

224. QUESTION:  The definition of Tier 2 support indicates this service will be performed on-site.   The Task Background indicates, "These operations include application software anomalies, password resets, virtual private network issues, and WAN related issues."   Typically, on-site tier two support is provided for end user compute (desktop) environments while the functions indicated in the Task Background are typically provided remotely.  Please elaborate on the specific type of support required from the on-site Tier 2 staff.

RESPONSE:  The Offeror shall propose Tier 2 functions for this RTO.
225. QUESTION: Please provide a list of the software products which are in scope for Tier 2 support.

RESPONSE:  The Government has provided this information in the GUEST Reference Library.

226. QUESTION:  

a. Will NASA ITCD staff require access to the Remedy system and if so how many users? 

b. Please provide system overview documentation for the ITCD implementation of newScale Service Catalog Express and a list of the current and planned catalog services.

RESPONSE: 

a. Yes, a limited number of the Government personnel will require direct reporting capabilities in Remedy.  

b. The Contractor is to establish and maintain the service catalog and all IT services within.

227. QUESTION:  Please specify citizenship and security clearance requirements for call center staff.

RESPONSE:  The security requirements are set forth in Attachment E to the contract and citizenship requirements are designated in Attachment F.

228. QUESTION:  Statement of Objectives, Section 5.2, page 3, under what GSFC organization does the Network Operations and Desktop Support Programs fall?  Is it anticipated that these contracts will be transitioned to the GUEST contract.

RESPONSE:  Network Operations requirements are currently provided by the Agency’s Unified NASA Information Technology Services (UNITeS) contract (#NNM04AA02C).  Desktop Services Program requirements are currently provided by the Outsourcing Desktop Initiative for NASA (ODIN) contract (NAS5-98145).  Neither of these activities is anticipated to migrate to GUEST.

229. QUESTION:  Statement of Objectives, Section 6.5.1, page 7. Does GSFC plan to transition the NEMS functions and the excessed hardware support, currently performed by Code 200 Logistics Division, to GUEST?

RESPONSE: No, NEMS has been replaced by N-PROP, and management of that system will not be part of GUEST.

230. QUESTION: Statement of Objectives, Section 6.5.2, page 7. Does GSFC plan to transition desktop support and hardware acquisition, currently performed under the ODIN contract, to GUEST?

RESPONSE:  No, these services will not transition to GUEST.   Section 6.5.2 states “appropriate coordination with the Enterprise Service Call Center, network operations and desktop services support staffs.”

231. QUESTION: Statement of Objectives, Section 6.5.6, page 8. Is there a requirement to continue to use NEMS (NASA Equipment Management System) for hardware tracking?

RESPONSE:  No, NEMS has been replaced by another Agency system call N-PROP.  The GUEST contractor shall use N-PROP to manage NASA assets.

232. QUESTION: Statement of Objectives, Sections 6.2 and 6.8.3 are nearly identical.  Suggest consolidating these SOO elements.

RESPONSE:  Section 6.8.3 has been deleted from the SOO.

233. QUESTION: Can the Government confirm that the list of IAGP in Attachment H is comprehensive and up-to-date? 

RESPONSE:   The information is comprehensive and up-to-date as of the day of posting.

234. QUESTION: Would the Government please provide a comprehensive list of GSFC Enterprise Applications?

RESPONSE:  The Government has the most current information in the GUEST Reference Library.

235. QUESTION: Section L.11 states that graphics and tables have a minimum 10 point font limit.  A 10 point font can be cumbersome for graphics such as process flows and tables.  Would the Government reconsider this font limitation and allow a minimum 8 point font for graphics and tables, providing that they remain clearly and easily readable? 

RESPONSE : The Government has determined that a minimum 10 point font for graphics and tables is necessary, see Section L.11 of the RFP.
236. QUESTION: Bidders will provide differing PWSs, reflecting the depth of their understanding of the SOO.  How will the Government evaluate these differences as they affect the BOE and pricing?

RESPONSE:   The Government will evaluate the PWS against the SOO in accordance with RFP Section M.4 Subfactor A.  The Government will evaluate the Basis of Estimate and Pricing based on the proposal’s task plan and technical approach to the RTOs in relation to the PWS proposed in accordance with Section M.5.

237. QUESTION: Does the Government intend to provide a service matrix or catalog? If so, please indicate whether it will itemize each service, e.g. by service name, approximate user base, hours of operation, whether or not it is serviced by the Help Desk, and provide an application’s weighted importance.

RESPONSE:  The Government does not intend to provide a service catalog.

238. QUESTION: Section I.17 references NASA’s 8 Percent Goal for SDBs, Historically Black Colleges, etc. and speaks to Contractors assisting them in this action.  Is that clause required for this 8(a) solicitation? 

RESPONSE: This clause is required by the NASA FAR Supplement (18-19.7003).
239. QUESTION: Section L. 14 requests a significant amount of pricing and backup information that would normally be required for Cost Reimbursable type contracts.  Given that this contract will be FPI, will the government consider reducing these requirements?

RESPONSE:  The “other than cost and pricing data” requested by the Government are the minimum requirements necessary to assess the Offeror's target cost and performance risk.

240. QUESTION: Section L.14, 2(c) presents draft FPI share ratios for cost overruns and underruns.  Would the Government consider a more equitable ratio for both scenarios?

RESPONSE: The Government has determined that the specified share ratios for cost overruns and underruns are appropriate for the GUEST requirement.
241. QUESTION: With reference to Section L.14, 2(n), could NASA explain why it has a requirement to access DCMA information?

RESPONSE: The Government needs to verify with DCMA the status of Offerors’ approved business systems (especially accounting since this is an FPI contract.)  We will also contact DCMA for rate verification. 

242. QUESTION: RTO 1- the Government requires that “The contractor shall establish a 24 hour Tier 1 Service Call Center...”  How many days per week does the Call Center operate, and does this include holidays?
RESPONSE:   The RTO has been modified to clarify this information.

243. QUESTION: It is our understanding that there are multiple Help Desks at GSFC.  How many of these Help Desks will be part of the Enterprise Service Call Center?

RESPONSE:  The GUEST contract supports the GSFC IT Transformation Project which addresses the consolidation of IT services, including help desk functions.  Other Center help desks can use GUEST, where appropriate, to provide these IT services. At contract inception, there will be one Service Call Center Task order. It is anticipated that other existing help desks will be integrated on a task by task basis.
244. QUESTION: Would the Government please clarify whether Remedy will be Government furnished or contractor acquired?

RESPONSE:   For RTO 1, the contractor shall provide the referenced Remedy products.

245. QUESTION: Not all delivery dates are provided in RTO 1.  Are vendors supposed to provide these due dates or will they be supplied by the Government?

RESPONSE:  The Offeror shall propose the delivery schedule for those items in this RTO that are not specified.

246. QUESTION: Would the Government please elaborate on be the Help Desk's role for RTO 3?
RESPONSE:  The Help Desk (RTO 1) shall provide Tier 1 support to RTO 3.

247. QUESTION: RTO 4- the Government states that over 200 web-based applications need to be maintained.  Of these, are the applications COTS, GOTS, custom-developed, or a combination of these?

RESPONSE:  The applications are a combination of custom-developed and COTS applications. See the GUEST Reference Library section 4.6.2. 
248. QUESTION: Would the Government please indicate what technologies (front-end and back-end) the applications are written in?

RESPONSE:  See the GUEST Reference Library section 4.6.2.
249. QUESTION: Would the Government please indicate how may releases are typically made a year, and for how many of the applications?

RESPONSE:  The Government cannot forecast future releases. :However, a snapshot of the existing data center and application software environment was provided as part of the GUEST Industry Day Presentation on June 23, 2008.
250. QUESTION: Would the Government please indicate the typical level of effort (man-hours) required to complete a release?

RESPONSE:   The Offeror can review the existing task in the GUEST Reference Library to better understand the typical level of effort currently required to support application development.
251. QUESTION: You have indicated that GUEST will be a follow-on contract to the Network Engineering Services (NES) Contract.  How much of the support currently provided by NES Contract will be provided by the GUEST Contract?  And, where are the NES functions identified in the GUEST Statement of Objectives (SOO)? 

RESPONSE:  GUEST is not a complete follow-on contract for the NES contract.  Some of the activities currently performed under NES may be incorporated into GUEST under SOO sections 6.7 and 7.4, as appropriate and as Agency follow-on contracts dictate.

252. QUESTION: At the Pre-Solicitation Conference it was stated proposals will be due 30 days after the Final RFP release.  Request the Government consider allowing 45 days rather than 30 days for the proposal submissions.  One reason among others--many capture team members have vacations planned, and would like to have time to prepare a high quality proposal and allow family vacations as planned.

RESPONSE:   The Government intends to maintain the 30 days for proposal submission.  Offerors may request an extension after release of the Final RFP, if they feel such an extension is warranted.
253. QUESTION: Task 3658 Rev 1 in the GUEST Reference Library states the “task is extended with the same SOW as before.”   We would like to get the original task order and SOW.  In the DRFP this task is listed under “Systems Analysis Services” which corresponds to the SOO 6.8.3. 

RESPONSE:  The Task 3658 SOW is available in the GUEST Library.

254. QUESTION:  Section L.14.2(c), page 102. The cost sharing percentages for the cost underruns are reversed from what we normally see in FPI contracts.  We recommend a 50/50 cost share for cost underruns and 75/25 Government/contractor cost sharing percentages for overruns.

RESPONSE:  The Government believes the ratios are appropriate for the GUEST solicitation.
255. QUESTION: RTO 3 states: "Requests for service vary in scope and time from applications hosting requirements to the procurement and setup of new servers.  Initial response and acknowledgement for application hosting requests shall occur within seventy two (72) hours of receipt, with full resolution within ten (10) working days of receipt. Requests for setup of new servers, exclusive of acquisition time, shall be acknowledged within seventy two (72) hours of receipt with full resolution, exclusive of acquisition time, within ten (10) working days of receipt of requisite hardware."  
The Deliverables table for RTO 3 states: "Initial response to hosting/support requests within 72 hours of receipt; resolution/estimation of required resources within five (5) working days of receipt."
Would you please clarify if the contractor if the Specific Requirement should be a full resolution within ten (10) working days of receipt or a full resolution within five (5) working days of receipt.
And should this be a "resolution/estimation of required resources" or "a full resolution within XXX (X) working days"?
RESPONSE:  Full resolution of the issue is required within ten (10) working days; the five (5) days listed in the deliverables section refers to the time by which an estimate of the resources required to solve the problem is due.  The full resolution time of ten (10) days was omitted in error from the deliverables section and has been added.

256. QUESTION: Will you provide a copy of GUEST Pre-Solicitation Conference Slide Presentation and Attendees List?

RESPONSE: Yes, the Pre-Solicitation Conference (PSC) presentation slides and CIO presentation has been posted to the NAIS GSFC Business Opportunities website.  The PSC Attendees List has been posted.

257. QUESTION: How do you foresee 1PV6, VOIP, Internet 2, and TIC playing into the GUEST program?

RESPONSE: The GUEST Offerors should be aware of these technologies. Their implementation into the Enterprise must be closely aligned and coordinated with the Agency’s Enterprise Architecture. All of the technologies have a cost-benefit to the Enterprise and must be evaluated to ensure the objectives set forth in this contract are still met. 
258. QUESTION: Will the RTO templates be placed in the GUEST Procurement Library?  If so where are they located?

RESPONSE:  The Offerors’ task plans for the RTO’s shall be prepared in accordance with Clause B.3 and the Price “Exhibits C” set forth in the RFP.
259. QUESTION: Draft Share Ratio: The proposed shares for underruns are Government 80%/Contractor 20%.  It is much more typical (best practice) to have share ratios for underrun be 50/50.  Recommend the Government adopt a 50% Contractor share for underrun.

RESPONSE:  The Government has reviewed this recommendation, and believes the ratios are appropriate for the GUEST solicitation.
260. QUESTION: To help manage the proposers risk will NASA consider reducing the maximum task orders from $10 million to $2 million.

RESPONSE:  Clause B.6 sets forth the minimum and maximum ordering limitations to be issued for each individual task.  The Government feels the $2 million dollar threshold would not be in the Government’s best interest as it would potentially preclude Offerors from performing GUEST requirements.  This maximum value is reflective of the potential effort required to meet the objectives set forth in the SOO’s.
261. QUESTION: What is the agency and GSFC commitment to Microsoft products?

RESPONSE:  Agency standards are set forth in NASA-STD-2804.
262. QUESTION: During the RTO Presentation, it was mentioned about place of performance that seemed to be inconsistent with the RTO in the dRFP package, please clarify. 

RESPONSE: The place of performance is specified under the hypothetical representative task orders as follows:

RTO-1  Tier 1 – off-site, Tier 2 & 3 on-site.

RTO-2  On-site.  

RTO-3  To be proposed by the Offeror.

RTO-4  To be proposed by the Offeror.

263. QUESTION: Will we be provided the current headcount (FTE’s) of folks performing on the current contracts?

RESPONSE:  See the response to Question 70.

264. QUESTION: Can the virtualization study mentioned by Jerry Esper be posted on the website?

RESPONSE: There is a folder on Data virtualization Study Results in the GUEST Reference Library. 

265. QUESTION: What are your existing change control processes?

RESPONSE:  Applications exist in 3 environments: Development, Test, and Production.

Minor enhancements or change requirements are implemented without being vetted through the Change Control Board (CCB).  Only major upgrades or version upgrades to applications need to be vetted through the CCB or the appropriate technical representatives present. 

266. QUESTION: Given the GUEST emphasis on Enterprise architectures, process, standards, policies, industry best practices, please explain the GUEST procurement relationship and scope with respect to the contemplated HOEST Procurement.

RESPONSE:  GUEST represents IT services and operations, while HOEST represents planning, policy, and quality assurance functions.

267. QUESTION: What are current Data center support requirements for Schedule? 24x7 or some other scheme?
RESPONSE: The Government desires results and outcomes that allow us to meet the needs of NASA’s 24 x 7 x 365 mission.

268. QUESTION: Would you please tell me the estimated value of the GUEST RFP annually and for the base plus options years. 
RESPONSE:  Refer to the answer provided to question number 60.
269. QUESTION: “The current approach of no site visits protects the process, but does not permit us to assess the risk related to the bid or proposal evaluation.  We need more information.  One of the key areas you have asked the contractor to address is risk Management and that is what we are attempting to do.” 

RESPONSE:  The Government does not believe that site visits are required for Offerors to propose risk management and planning approaches.

270. QUESTION: 

a. How/why is RTO 1 specified at 5000 calls per week when the current level is about 20% of that?  

b. What are the capabilities of the current implementation?  Have any studies been performed that relate to the RTO's? 

c. The current Virtualization Study results as posted in the library appear to be only a list of servers.  

d. Is there a study report that identifies an approach going forward or recommendations for consolidation?

RESPONSE: 

a. For purposes of responding to RTO 1, Offerors shall utilize the data as set forth in the solicitation.  The Government recognizes there may be differences between the information set forth in the RTO and the performance that will actually be required.

b. See the GUEST Reference Library section 4.1.1 and the NAIS PSC for current tasks and metrics. 

c., d. No study reports that identify an approach going forward or recommendations for consolidation are available at this time.
271. QUESTON:  How/why is RTO 1 specified at 5000 calls per week when the current level is about 20% of that?  What are the capabilities of the current implementation, e.g. response time, maximum calls per hour, dropped calls, etc.?  What are the current statistics in these categories?

RESPONSE:  For purposes of responding to RTO 1, Offerors shall utilize the data as set forth in the solicitation.  The Government recognizes there may be differences between the information set forth in the RTO and the performance that will actually be required.  Historical metrics are available in the technical presentations of June 23, 2008, and in the GUEST Reference Library section 4.1.1.
272. QUESTION: Have any studies been performed that relate to the RTO’s and future planning for ITCD?  Will they be posted to the library?  

RESPONSE:  No studies have been performed.

273. QUESTION: The current Virtualization Study results as posted in the library appear to be only a list of servers and are apparently the results of a survey not a study.  Is there a study report that identifies an approach going forward or recommendations for consolidation?

RESPONSE:  The Government has provided all the information related to the current virtualization study in the GUEST Reference Library.

274. QUESTION: What if any legacy systems are not to be included in such a virtualization transition?

RESPONSE: The Government has not completed its requirements for any virtualization effort. 
275. QUESTION: What are the current metrics for the operations included in the RTO’s, i.e., staffing, systems and software supporting, space used, response times, etc?

RESPONSE:  Historical metrics are available in the GUEST Industry Day Technical presentations of June 23, 2008 and in the GUEST Reference Library.
276. QUESTION: What efforts and staffing levels from the CSC contract are being moved to GUEST?

RESPONSE:  Some of the activities currently performed under NES may be incorporated into GUEST under SOO 6.7, as appropriate and as Agency follow-on contracts dictate.  We will not provide current staffing levels for the NES contract.  See response to Question 70.

277. QUESTION: The current call center is staffed from 0800-1730 M-F.  How are off-hour calls currently handled?  Is this approach an option for GUEST?  

RESPONSE:  Off-hour ITCD help desk calls are handled by the Outsourcing Desktop Initiative for NASA Call Center.  The technical approach to support off-hours center ITCD help desk calls will be determined by the Offerors as part of their technical proposal response.
278. QUESTION: With regard to the proposal format:  Many of the cost exhibits do not currently conform to the 1 inch margin all around and 12 pt. font.  May we submit these forms as they are or must we reformat to meet the requirement in L.11 (b)(2) on page 90?  
RESPONSE: The requirement to conform to the 1 inch margin all around and 12pt. font applies to the proposal ‘text’ pages.  Diagrams, tables, artwork, and photographs may be reduced and, if necessary, run landscape or folded to eliminate oversize pages.  Text in Diagrams, charts, tables, artwork, and photographs shall be no smaller than 10 point.  Diagrams, tables, artwork, and photographs shall not be used to circumvent the text size limitations of the proposal.  The Cost Exhibits provide the structure and format.

279. QUESTION: Will NASA change the period-of-performance for the RTO’s to reflect the new contract start date?

RESPONSE:  The period of performance for the Representative Task Orders has been revised.  The anticipated contract start date is April 1, 2009.

280. QUESTION:  Does operations support to SEWP include SEWP product center support, and maintaining a test and demonstration laboratory?  If so, where is this laboratory located and if not, has this been discontinued?

RESPONSE:  The Government no longer has a test and demonstration lab for SEWP.

281. QUESTION: Relative to the requirement for a IT security plan ( Clause B-1 Item 9-- Clause I.1 1852.204-76). Since the Code 700 systems have been Certified and Accredited and controls are in place, how do these requirements apply to this support contract and for what systems?  What is due 30 days after contract award?  Will these deliverables be part of a Task Order for delivery of a system?

RESPONSE:  When the service provider has primary responsibility for operating an information technology system for NASA that contains sensitive information, the service provider’s contract shall include the clause at 1852.204-76, Security Requirements for Unclassified Information Technology Resources.   The Security Requirements clause requires the service provider to implement an Information Technology Security Plan to protect information processed, stored, or transmitted from unauthorized access, alteration, disclosure, or use.  The IT Security Plan is due 30 calendar days after the contract effective date, for review and approval to incorporate at the contract level.  
282. QUESTION: The Draft RFP for GUEST contains clause H. 9  SECURITY  REQUIREMENTS FOR UNCLASSIFIED INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY RESOURCES (1852.204-76)  (MAY 2008). However, I can only find the May 2007 version posted on the website (http://prod.nais.nasa.gov/far).

RESPONSES: The clause can be found at NASA Active Procurement Information Circular #08-09 May 1, 2008  Class Deviation to NASA FAR Supplement 1852.204-76 Security Requirements for Unclassified Information Technology Resources.
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